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Letter to the Shareholders zs 5114

| am pleased to report that the Group has continued to achieve improvement in its results for the financial year ended 28
February 2009 (“the year”) over that achieved last financial year. Due to the global economic crisis and other factors, however,
that growth has become moderate as compared to that of last year.

The improvement was mainly due to (i) an increase in both turnover and net profit of the retail business in mainland China and
(ii) an income gained from the termination of a rental lease in Hong Kong. While benefiting from the less-affected economy of
mainland China, the Group spent significant efforts in fighting against declining markets of other business regions.

In coping with the global financial situation, the Group took a cautious approach to the management of store and inventory
portfolios of all business segments. It also took various measures to stringently control the company costs. While acting
prudently to minimize the negative impact on severely affected areas such as export and non-Chinese tourism, the Group was
eager to identify opportunities. We achieved the following results during this fiscal year:

* Opened 17 stores in the mainland China retail network for maximizing business opportunities in a continually growing
market. In light of the global financial crisis, store expansion was slowed down in the second half of the year.

e Out of the said 17 new stores, 7 of these stores were for our second brand “SAXX” expansion, bringing the SAXX stores to
a total number of 19 in mainland China.

e Opened 2 stores in Yuen Long and Sheung Shui in the New Territories for further penetration of our business into the Hong
Kong local consumer market, and maximizing the cross-the-border-shopping business from Shenzhen of China.

* Refreshed the brand image of TSL, SAXX and Estrella by revamping the visuals of stores and marketing materials with the
new thematic images photographed in the United States.

¢ Upgraded the showroom environment with the updated store design and visuals in the Hung Hom headquarters.

* Successfully launched a new seasonal product campaign that aims at bringing international jewellery and fashion trends to
our customers.

* Received recognition of our well-established quality service culture from external bodies such as the service award from
Hong Kong Retail Management Association and MTR Corporation.

* Won a number of international and local jewellery design awards that recognized our leadership in and dedication to
innovative jewellery design.

Notwithstanding the on-going global financial turbulence and the threat of Influenza A (H1N1) outbreak, | stay positive with the
future development of the Group. With the completion of various core infrastructure projects in the past few years, the Group
owns a satisfactory platform for supporting its growth in the years to come. In addition, our long history in the jewellery retail
industry and the prestigious TSL brand position developed in mainland China are the critical success factors in sustaining

our growth. With the support of the TSL main brand, the second brand “SAXX”, which represents a stylish and energetic

way of life through its metaphor of jazz music, has been gradually moving into the consumer market of young professionals

in mainland China. This positioning of SAXX will secure us high-potential opportunities in the next few years. In the luxury
segment, the Estrella Diamond will continue to be our major focus, which aims at bringing one-of-a-kind high-jewellery offerings
to our customers. Being a brand-driven jewellery retailer who provides high quality products with state-of-the-art designs and
craftsmanship has been and will continue to be the core value for the Group to move forward.

We shall, with the continuing support of our shareholders and other stakeholders, continue to work steadily and diligently in
order to achieve our mission and face any challenges to come.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EI2E 2 FTR BT

Group Results

For the financial year ended 28 February 2009, the Group achieved (i) a consolidated turnover of HK$1,959 million (2008:
HK$1,917 million), an increase of 2.2% from last financial year and (ii) a profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$104.8 million (2008: HK$99.2 million), an increase of 5.6%. Earnings per share were 50 HK cents (2008: 48 HK cents).
The improvement in the Group’s results for the year was mainly attributable to (i) the growth of turnover and contribution from
our mainland China (the “Mainland”) business and (ii) other income from compensation for early termination of a shop lease.

The improvement was mainly noted in the first half of the financial year. Because of the deepening of the global financial
crisis in September, 2008, it was inevitably that the luxury market in which the Group operated has been affected. Excluding
the effect of the compensation received in the other income, the profit attributable to equity holders decreased by 23.4% from
HK$99.2 million to HK$76 million.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 3 HK cents per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 28 February
2009 (2008: 1 HK cent) to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Thursday, 27
August 2009. Together with the interim dividend paid to shareholders on Thursday, 15 January 2009, the total dividend for the
year ended 28 February, 2009 will be 5 HK cents (2008: 1 HK cent). Subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the final dividend will be paid on Friday, 11 September 2009.

During the year, Hong Kong and Macau Retail markets have slowed down because of the visa policy adjustment by the
Mainland to prepare for the Beijing Olympic Games in the first half and the deepening of the global financial crisis in the second
half.

The Group have continued the review of its retail operations in Hong Kong and progressively shifted the mix of its stores to
better suit the changing shopping habits in Hong Kong. During the year, the Group opened two new stores respectively in
Sun Yuen Long Centre and Landmark North in Sheung Shui. Renewal of lease for existing sites has been critically evaluated
particularly in respect of the rental in light of the uncertain economic situation.

Thanks to the sales growth of tourists from the Mainland, despite the decrease in number of tourists from other overseas
markets, turnover in the Group’s showroom business was stable during the year.

Our business in the Mainland saw satisfactory growth which was in line with the increasing wealth of the population and the

expanding the Mainland economy generally. During the year, 17 new stores were opened by the Group of which 7 are Saxx
stores. This second brand has been well-received by consumers and our business partners.
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Because of the uncertain and deteriorating global economy, our export business has tightened the credit policy and the
business slowed down. There have also been pressures on the margin and affected the performance of this business.

The Malaysian operation was also affected by the global financial crisis and the business has slowed down in the second half
of the year.

The deterioration of the world wide economy seems to have stabilized in recent months. However, the economic recovery and
the aftermath of the financial crisis are yet to be certain. The outbreak of the influenza A (H1N1) also poses an additional threat
to the fragile economy. The outlook of the market in the coming year is, therefore, also full of uncertainties.

In view of the global financial crisis, the Group has been taking a cautious approach to critically review the store and inventory
portfolio of all business segments. The Group has also implemented stringent cost control measures and improved the internal
efficiency. The continuous improvements in these core competences have been and will be an important source of growth of
the Group. These efforts also enable the Group to better grasp the opportunities arising from the continued economic growth in
the Mainland in which the Group has a very good presence.
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2.2% : M (i) AR A IR R FEAE & 5] A% 104,800,0007T (20084 : #%£99,200,0007T) + & 115.6% ° TR & F & B 501U (20084 : B 48
W) s REBEERNANFEEMERZEIERAA)ASEE NHRBIARE([EA ) #H s & EBRERMEE R (i)RATKLIEEHELN 2 BESR
ZEMYA o

BRIERIENAMBRFE LEFHE - ENERSHERR T \FALARBABRAT  AEELEZSMBERTHHRXETE -
Tt R EEREEZ EtPRANEE - BCRE BT H/E%99,200,0007T T #23.4% =8 %76,000,0007T °

EECEFHREAQAEHE2009F2 A28H |FFEARHM B ER L @AY 2B (2008F  FE@EBIEE11L) FH2009F8 H27H (M)
BHNR A TR A 2 IR o ERIE 200951 8158 (EHM) MR IRE 2 R EIAL S, - H22009F2 828 H |FFE 2 % B4R 4 AS 5L
(20084 : EEE1IL) - REALE#742009F9 5118 (2 H )R - BHEREREERITHRRAEFKS I ERIEE -

HEARN FEFEFILRRESMARSTERE N TEER2RERABK I FERL  SIBFENERMIy TETIHNE -
ANEFEERTEBZTEER  WEGNIERES  UWEFEIABATEEE 2 EYWEE - FR  KEEDRIEFH RO N EKES
FIRRR R FNE  EREOEIRIE TR - AEEE B AEH BRI B(FREMR S mE ) ETEER -

pg18









53 xX






BEEMBITZREAZRTRE  EABABAKEHEEMIFGER  AEEFARIIEXH CEXBHRRRE

BERAARMEAGEELREAKLEERERED  AREZEREBIRSHEER - R AEBEFRITEHE - EP7FHBSax/E © Ut
Blmie EX R R EBRHED -

BEREREETRANEZ AEECRBEROXB2EERR  BREBEMNE - ARMNBETXE - MPEHOEHB2RA -
FROAGEBTZEHERORTE - ZFBRAFE THFRBMEE -

A 2REEBEBEACBRIIRE - Al > KETCERLRSRERENDE —BREDBRNZE - BEFLREAHINT IR K55 EILR
B o Bt - MSRFRIRIFRMER o

ENEREREH  ARE-BERNBERR  FARIMBEEBIB2EHRFEAS - AEE T BB A e ZE R EiR
Ko WETBEBARBEN  BEBER/AKERRZEZRE  MERTLINE - HERRBERY - RS AKERERNEZED - L FEEE
EEE KBS BRSO H -

Finance, Liquidity, Capital Structure and Gearing
Capital expenditure including store renovation and expansion, information technology investment and machinery made during
the year amounted to approximately HK$45 million. This was mainly financed from bank borrowings and internal resources.

At 28 February 2009, the Group’s total borrowings decreased to HK$131.8 million from HK$171.1 million at 29 February,
2008. Our debt to equity ratio (ratio of total borrowings to total equity) has decreased from 38.2% to 22.7% because of the
increase in total equity value resulting from the profit and the repayment of loan during the year. All the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Interest is determined on the basis of inter-bank market rates or prime rate.

As at 28 February 2009, the Group had cash and bank balances and undrawn banking facilities of approximately HK$137
million, which in the opinion of the directors, should be sufficient for the present working capital requirements.
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Exchange Rates [E*
During the year, the transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in local currencies and US dollars. The impact of the
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates of these currencies is insignificant to the Group.

RAFEER  AEENRGEIEURMEENETREN - KFEENER KD AEELBEEATE

Charges on Group Assets

(1) At 28 February 2009, debentures were executed by the Group in favour of its bankers and financial creditors charging, by
way of fixed and floating charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of the Company and 12 of its subsidiaries as
security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to the bankers
and financial creditors. Rental revenue of the Group is also charged in favour of the Group’s bankers.

(2) At 28 February 2009, the Group pledged all rights, titles and interests in 80.46% of the entire share capital of Infinite Assets
Corp. and Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) Limited and all benefits accruing to the pledged equity interest to the Group’s
bankers and financial creditors as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time
owing by the Group to the bankers and financial creditors.

(3) On 27 September 2007, the Company and its 6 subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) executed a second floating charge and the
Company made a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there is a cross guarantee among the Subsidiaries in favor of Rosy
Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK”) to pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to and title and interest from
time to time in their inventories or stock-in-trade and their receivables from their overseas fellow subsidiaries in connection
with the sales and supply of any inventory or stock-in-trade to such overseas fellow subsidiaries as a continuing security
for the debts arising from the supply of polished diamonds and precious stones by Rosy Blue HK to the Subsidiaries (the
“Debts”). At 28 February 2009, the Debts amounted to HK$70,430,000.
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Contingent Liabilities

(1) As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 June 2008, two directors of the Company, and a controller
of showroom operations of a subsidiary and a consultant to a subsidiary were convicted by the District Court of Hong
Kong of various charges involving offences under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the Crime Ordinance and the
Theft Ordinance. The Company has been informed that the two directors who have been convicted have commenced
proceedings to appeal the verdict (“the Appeal”). Under the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Company may be required to
indemnify its directors from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them may incur in execution of their duty, provided that such indemnity shall not be extended to any matter in respect of,
among other things, fraud and dishonesty. The Directors are of the view that they are not in a position to conclude that
whether and/or to what extent the Company may be required to indemnify the two directors involved in relation to the
Appeal.

(2) As at the balance sheet date, the disputes of certain subsidiaries with Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) regarding the tax
treatment of certain offshore income, agents commission payments and promoter fees for prior years are still undetermined.
During the year, a subsidiary received additional assessments and proposed adjustments in relation to the dispute on
the tax treatment of agent commission payments and promoter fees for prior years. The Group has established a total
provision of approximately HK$94 million for all the additional assessments issued and proposed by IRD in respect of such
disputes. In the event that the Group is not successful in defending the tax treatments adopted, the Group may be subject
to significant additional tax liabilities and possibly penalties which, under the provisions of the current tax legislation, may be
up to three times any tax under-reported as assessed by the IRD.

Furthermore, the verdict of the District Court of Hong Kong mentioned in (1) above may or may not have impact on the
IRD’s challenges on the tax treatments adopted by the Group relating to agents commission payments and promoter

fees arising in prior years. The directors consider that it is impractical to estimate the potential amount of additional tax
liabilities arising if the IRD’s challenge in respect of the offshore income, agent commission payments and promoter fees is
successful.
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Human Resources
As at 28 February 2009, the total number of employees of the Group was approximately 3,200 (2008: 3,200).

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to market rates. Other employee benefits include medical
cover and subsidies for job-related continuing education. The Group also has an employee share option scheme. No options
were granted pursuant to the scheme during the year. Retail front line staff is provided with formal on-the-job training by
internal seniors and external professional trainers. Experience sharing with seniors at in-house seminars and discussion
groups enhance intra-departmental communications.
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Directors & Senior Management Profile
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Executive Directors #7z=

1.Yau On Yee, Annie | 5%

Aged 38, is the Chairman of the Group. She pioneered the Group’s Jewellery ERP
discipline and modernized the Company’s management through business process
re-engineering in the past few years. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she worked
for large companies such as Motorola Semiconductors and IBM. She has over

16 years of management experience in the United States and Hong Kong. She

is a director of Partner Logistics Limited which has discloseable interests in the
Company under provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. She graduated
from Boston University, USA and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Engineering.
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2. Erwin Steve Huang | &k

Aged 43, is the Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. He
is responsible for the overall financial and business operations and management

of the Group. He has been with the group for 4 years mainly in handling the Tourist
showroom operations and Corporate public relations. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2005, he was a seasoned entrepreneur in different industries, including
publishing, education, telecom and information technology. Mr. Huang has built and
developed multiple companies in the last 20 years in London, San Francisco, Tokyo,
and Hong Kong. He holds double degrees in Business Operation Management and
Management Information System from Boston University, USA.
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3. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael | 3=

Aged 42, is the General Manager of TSL Jewellery (Export) Company Limited. Mr.
Cheung is responsible for managing the Export Division of the Group. He holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from Henley Management College in the
United Kingdom and a Master of Science Degree in Financial Management from
University of London, U.K. He is also a Chartered Marketer and a member of the
Chartered Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom. Before joining the Group in
March 2005, he held senior positions in several multinational corporations, and has
over 14 years of experience in marketing management and business development.

RF2p  WHEBHRE(HD)ERARNZAEE  RECAAREBAEEERIOE
7 o 1 #54 h % B Henley Management College 8280 TR E TR ERE + 30 » AR
HfRBASRENRIRE T (EEUBER) S WAREFT S REB ST
BEGEE - R2005F3AMARET 25 - HERSHBERACELIEN - 586
1AFHMSERREBERLR -

4. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence | 227 &

Aged 43, is the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Group.
He is responsible for the overall finance and administration of the Group. He

holds a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Before joining the Group in 2001, he had over 10 years of experience in a
listed company in Hong Kong and an international accounting firm.

BFAB5 - BF - GEUBRARNNE - REAAEE 2 ERUB RITHERBY -
FRAHEMBRTBUR THERRLEM  UATEGNARRERFFAR
BHEMAGZEREE - R2001FMAREENAR - RAEREE LT AR RERS
SHRDATHR 10 AVALER o

5. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel | EEBt

Aged 45, is the Director — Group Human Resources and is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and implementation of human resources and people development
functions of the Group. She joined the Group in July 2001. She brings with her over
20 years of solid human resources generalist experience from local and multinational
organizations in retailing, supply chain management, hi-tech and food products
manufacturing areas. She holds a Bachelor’s degree in Arts.

BF455% 0 BF - REANER ARAREZERANERRAT BERR 8 R
EIR o 20017 AMAREE - WAFBB0FEE 2 ANEREELH  BF
BRE[BABEBEECE  £BERTE  WRERE SHRERERRLE - 855
EXBBLEBM -
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Independent Non-executive Directors =7 3ksn77%=

6. Chui Chi Yun, Robert | &&=

Aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company

since 12 April 1999. Mr. Chui is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is
also an independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1003) and Vertex Group Limited (Stock Code: 8228), which are companies listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

FE525% 0 H1999F4A12BERARNABILIFNTES - ELERTENES
FHED o I AMB L (XEE)EML  TABTAESHIATRERSHAR SR
MAGzERGE - BEAENMA2IZERERDAE (BRHORR - 1003) KB IEEME
BRAR(BRMAR  8228) 2 BUFNITEE  MEERAANNEARARIME
RAF L -

7. Peter George Brown | 8%/

Aged 64, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 4
December 2006. Mr. Brown is currently a consultant with Wilkinson & Grist, Solicitors
and is admitted as a solicitor in England & Wales and Hong Kong and also as a
solicitor and barrister in Victoria, Australia. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from
University College, London. He is also a director of a significant number of private
companies including subsidiaries of multinational corporations.

FE645% 0 H2006F 12 J4REBARBEILFRNITES - BEERAREEEMT
EERR] © 1% 0 BB SR B R BB T DA R B OB RAN AR WARRMNEZ M A
ZBEEE AR o 5355 R University College) 2@ 2L E8( - MITAREMLA
RE(EFREBRCENMNBATNES -
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8. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin | =1F#

Aged 44, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 30
November 2008. Mr. Heng is a professional investor and was a Managing Director
of The Royal Bank of Scotland, Hong Kong and a director of HSBC Securities
(Asia) Ltd. and various financial institutions. He has extensive banking experience
specialising in equity derivatives and structured products. He has held senior
positions in several major private financial institutions in Hong Kong and had been
registered with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority as Executive Officer and the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission as Responsible Officer carrying out
various regulated activities. Mr. Heng holds a Master degree of Arts in Mathematics
& Management Studies from the University of Cambridge, England. He is an
associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong.

4435 - B2008F 11 AS0RBAA AR B UIFRITES - ELERUFTHIEREE
%o FEIEAHBHERBIT 2 ESHLERELES (TN ARAFURZ M
BB ES - HRIBRTRAGLELSR  EMZEERATTETAREBEIEERNE
% BREBZHEZVEVHRBERIEN FESREERIMAETEABRSE
BELARHEERERZESTABEAE  RESEIREEY - TAEHFREAR
BARENZ(HERERE)ELT2M - FAREHREBTETIStHAegERE
BEHAEEE -



9. Cheng Hung Piu, Belmon | #5&i2

Aged 51, is the Director — Group Product Planning and Trading. He joined the Group
in 1977 and has extensive experience in retail operation, product development

and merchandise planning. He is responsible for the product procurement

and merchandising of the Group and also responsible for the merchandising
management of the trading business in China and Malaysia.

RES1pL B2 -SEERREINES - FMIT7T7TFNAREBNETEER - EH
FRLERREIE  AAEZER - HAAESERRRELRRE  BhEEER
REPRERBRATZE SR -

10. Lee Yiu Pong, Eric | Z=/@#

Aged 45, is the General Manager — China Retail of the Group since March 2002.
Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor's degree. He has more than 15 years experience in retail
business in China.

BEFA5EY - ANEBZBEIE - PETE - R200253 AR MAKREE - FIFEELER
i R A1 A BT E LR -

11. Chan Chi Ho, Fred | 55

Aged 44, is the Associate Director — Retail Operation of the Group. Mr. Chan
graduated from University of Leicester, U.K. and holds a Master (Hon.) of Business
Administration degree in Retail Marketing. He joined the Group in 1 August 2002 and
has over 9 years of experience in retail operations in China.

RF4apn  AEBZAEE - TEEE - RELERENEBETIEAE  BEINE
BIRE (RE) B - TETEDHE © WR200298 A1 H AR EKE R HEABRBIF

12. Fung Suk Ming, Abby | 35187

Aged 40, is the Financial Controller — Group Finance. She is responsible for the
financial and management accounting functions of the Group. Ms. Fung graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration (Professional Accountancy). She also holds a Master

of Science degree in Economics from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Before joining the Group in 2004, she had over 10 years of experience
in treasury and accounting functions in several listed companies and multinational
corporations.

FRF405% - BIMRE - KRBT ARAKRBEZHUBREEDHRT - REENES
MRS TEHEEGH  FAIREESLEM - RIFARE BRI ASREN
MEBRLTEM - TEER  YREBSHMNAGRABARTLARGMAGZEE -
A 2004 FMMAREEAR - RAEREZMEL LHATRBEMEB® 10 FHFE
R &aHEss

13. Yip Kwok Fai, Keith | ZE32

Aged 42, is the Associate Director — Group Merchandising & Sourcing. Mr. Yip
graduated from The University of Warwick in England and holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Manufacturing Engineering. He brings with his over 10 years of manufacturing
experience in the eyewear and watch industries. Prior to joining the Group in May
2005, he worked for some multinational companies like Citizen Watch Group and
Bausch & Lomb Ltd.

REA257 - BES - EEERMEE - EAERERNEBUniversity of Warwick * 1§
BUETIRRB2 2T o RIEEEMRBRFEIE HEGBB10FLER - 12005554
MAREE 2R - HEREREAERARRKETHARATNSEEEEETE -
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Report of the Directors =g R+=

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
28 February 2009.

ZESMAIRZEE2009F2 A28 H |FFEMNF R M ASEZTBRE -

Principal Activities +Z%7%
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the geographical locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the
financial year is set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

ARBNEBEBRIREZER - SMBRRNEBERB REMFBRIINTHREME13 -
AREEEMBAR([AKEDRAPBRFENLERAOMTEINIERERMEN -

Major Customers and Suppliers 2%~ k{HER

For the year ended 28 February 2009, the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
turnover. The five largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 65% and
20% respectively by value of the Group’s total purchases.

As set out in note 31 on the financial statements, Rosy Blue Hong Kong Ltd. is a fellow subsidiary of Prime Investments S.A., a
preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited which is the Company’s controlling shareholder.

Except for the above, at no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which,
to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest (as defined in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”) in these major customers and suppliers.

HZE2009F2H28H I FE ' "EBRAARFF AR EAERE 22 X£FEEN30%  MANEE I ANEERE M A EER D GRS B A REREY
65%520% °

NN BA 75 3R R M 731 BTl - Rosy Blue Hong Kong Ltd. A& Partner Logistics Limited (1t 752872 &) 2 #52 f% i% 5 ) #98 SC A A B Prime Investments
SARRENRBRF

B Eiish - ARRIMNES - BEFABRBATHEARRBESAA - HAEARRAIEBITRAE%IA L) IEERANFREEEERZFE
REFIERNIAES(ERA(BERERSABRAR([BRM]ES EMARRNT ERRAL) -



Results and Dividends =4 &i&E

The profit of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2009 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 87 to 176.

A final dividend for the year ended 28 February 2009, of 3 HK cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total final dividend

of approximately HK$6,264,000 (2008: HK$2,088,000) is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. This, together with the interim dividend of 2 HK cents per ordinary share paid on Thursday, 15 January 2009, will
amount to a total dividend of 5 HK cents per ordinary share for the year (2008: 1 HK cent per ordinary share). Subject to
shareholders’ approval, the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 11 September 2009 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members on Thursday, 27 August 2009.

NEEEZE2009F2 A28 H IEFERRBFFIAR B RALERZ BN BACL SR E87E 176 B MM IEMRK A o

HZE2009F2 A28 H |EFE R E TR EBALEEIN - BIBEEL)E%6,264,0007T (20084 : 4A2,088,0007T)  H AR B fE[E IR R A F
AgLRETRFREBA - HIBREERMK2009F1 A158 (2 HM)RE 2 R HR S SR EBRBE2ML - AFERRBRELESLATRE B
IS5 (20084F « BT AAEE L) - FARERRLER - BURE 2 REIR S8 2009559 411 B (£ 81 f )k 34200958 H27 H (2 Him) &
FIRR R 2 2 BRER o

Closure of Register of Members =325 B F &L FE

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 21 August 2009 to Thursday, 27 August 2009, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and for
the attendance of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26/F., Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Thursday, 20 August 2009.

H2009F8 H21H (28 1) F200958 A27H (£28M) - BEEMARBIEEAN » AARIKEEHERNMBFEELTFE - RS ERBREUKE
ZARIREREFEIERIT 2 RFBFERG - REAMN200958 208 (2 #iM) TF MU =+ AlAS B P X4 ERMB AR RE B AR 57D 8
FPEREDELZENEFTHEERARNPEELFE @ it ABBEF KBBR8 S EETR 102612 -

Charitable Donations z=i8%

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$1,334,000 (2008: HK$384,000).

REERFNRZRE BN EE A5 11,334,0007T (20084 : ##5384,0007T) °

Property, Plant and Equipment %% - &E k&

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

AEBRARBRANEFEANE - BERRBERZHOFBENTEHRERMEI12



Share Capital &7

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

AR BRAFEARAE B BN I 5 KM 3E25

Reserves f#f&

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 26 to the financial statements, respectively.

AEBERARRANANFEARBBREDNFBRN G RABER MM TERKME26 -

Directors %

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:
AP BFERLBERREAHILNESNOT :

Executive Directors #17& %

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman) BZ#(E/E)
(appointed as Chairman on 24 April 2008) (2200844 F24 A¥Z (T AE)E)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman) =&k (8EfE)
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael 3&-Ff&
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence %22+

Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel &Bi#s
(appointed on 12 June 2009) (4200946 A12HEZ(T)

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy #iZig
(resigned as Chairman on 24 April 2008 and resigned as an executive director on 26 May 2008)
(70200844 H 24 H BHE T E RS K 1X200845 H26 A BHERMITES)

Peter Gerardus Van Weerdenburg ;2 1%15
(resigned on 10 June 2008) (720084 6510H & {f)



Independent Non-executive Directors &3/ 3Es1TE %

Chui Chi Yun, Robert &&=
Peter George Brown 8% =
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin == IE##
(appointed on 30 November 2008) (7200811 B30 X (T)
Siu Ming Wah ##44%
(resigned on 30 November 2008) (72008411 A30H &)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-Laws and to comply with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, Mr. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael, Ms. Chow
Kwok Ying, Rachel and Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin will retire as directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie, Mr. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael and Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as Executive Directors and Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for a term of three years. All other directors continue in office for the
ensuing year.

Each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors has provided a written confirmation in respect of the factors set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his independence to the Company. The Board considers each of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

RRARBNABARRE LBT EMRAUMEAAHEREAFRTRIZRE - BRERL « RTE5EE  BEBRLKERELEREEFTNA
BRITZBEBEFAG LER - BRERL - RFRALENBERLTAERI DR ITREBEEETANTESTLEERELEAERALCKT
BEEEEERBIIFNTES  FHAR=F - HWMEEFRINRFEERT -

=RBUFRTEFICH EMARRESABFRIHENERESB LN SAERALAARRRERE - EFER/=BEIBITEFTHAS
Sk e

Directors’ Service Contracts =27 iREE 4

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
BREGEBRNRRBFAEHREEENESHREARE T IR —FRAARKETAIEDN TRE(—REEEBRINONBERRIENRES
7 e



Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company

EEZNERSTRABRARR KRG - HERG MMEEFEOERS LORR

As at 28 February 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executive and/or their respective associates
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”),
were as follows:

20092 H280 - ARREFREZEETTRABR S EESE2EMHEALEEERE(ES REEKRANDEXVIBE7REH ISR A]
KB 22 P (BAER IR A EEPI B BIRN B BRI RE B EX MRS LA R ) VAR B R E A AEE A R ((EF LB RODEXVE 2 E5& )R
3~ MRARGD RERIER AR - SAREA FEPIES1EERNBEARRFEZERM  WERB LT ARERETEFRINEE
SFRAND(MEESF A D g AR 7 RE R PV A R 5] R B & A 5 GREHF EAERADEXVEBZ )ik - BRI RIEREE 8 Kok
BT :

(i) Interests and short positions in issued shares of the Company A& 51K 2 217D Z s AR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

SREEEY25THERR

% of total
issued shares
Derivative (derivative
Name of Personal Family Corporate interest Short Other interest
director interest interest interest (share options) position interest not included)
HERITRH
BYASL
fTET AR (FTET AR
ESpE B AR RikiER Ar)fER (ERE) 73} HithiEz Tt EERA)
|
Yau On Yee, Annie M% - - 152,960,914 100,000 - - 73.25%

(note 1)

(Fi=E1)
Erwin Steve Huang #&xk = = = 100,000 = = =
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael 5+ - - - 75,000 - - -
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 22+ = = = 200,000 = = =

Note: HffzE :

1. These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

1155 3 im AR A 15 Fa Partner Logistics Limited$§8 + 72 ®lfBlink Technology Limited# 5 4%l + Blink Technology Limited 8| A8 {22 + 2 R (BFE R LA 2 E B
B o RIEGEHLHEEN) - BEELZ TR ESH B Partner Logistics Limited$3 5 2 B8 f&fn < 2% -



(ii) Interests in underlying shares RAHERAR (D RIMERS

As at 28 February 2009, the directors of the Company had interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company as

follows:

7R2009F2H28H * ARRIEFFE AIRBEAR AR HEIREEZINOT

Number of share
options held
BRENHE

as at as at

Date of Exercise 1 March 28 February

Name of director Date of grant acceptance price Exercisable period 2008 2009

20085 720094

3] R AH BHAH TfEE® el 3A1H 2A28H

|

Yau On Yee, Annie 25 July 2005 28 July 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 100,000 100,000
(note 1) (note 2)
kgt 200547 A25H 20057 A28H HHEA1.767T 200548 A22H £2009F7 A25H
(FigzE1) (Fiz2)

Erwin Steve Huang 25 July 2005 1 August 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 100,000 100,000
(note 1) (note 2)
BEK 200557 AH25H 200548A1H BH#1.767C 200598 A22H Z£2009%7 A25H
(FigzE1) (Fiz2)

Cheung Tse Kin, Michael 25 July 2005 28 July 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 75,000 75,000
(note 1) (note 2)
R 200547 A25H 20057 A28H HHEA1.767T 20058 A22H £2009F7 A25H
(FigzE1) (Fiz2)

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 25 July 2005 29 July 2005 HK$1.76 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009 200,000 200,000
(note 1) (note 2)
BFR 200547 A25H 200597 A29H HHEA1.767T 20058 A22H £2009F7 A25H
(FigzE1) (Fiz2)

Notes: FfizF :

1. The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 25 July 2005 was HK$1.71, being the date on which the

relevant options were offered for grant.

RRRIIAH200547 525 B (ANA BB AGHE « 2AX T B H) BB R Preis W B RB%1.71 T -

2. As one of the conditions of grant, the grantees concerned agreed with the Company that (i) 20% of the options granted can be exercised during the
period from 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009; (ii) the next 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 January 2007 to 25

July 2009; and (iii) the remaining 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 July 2007 to 25 July 2009.

REP—BERTEENS  BEEARAERQERE « () EF20%E % H i A% A 722005458 A 22 H £200947 B 25 B BIATT{# : (i) B IM0%E % H B A 7] 11200741 A 25

H %2009 7 A25 B HARTTHE ¢ K (iii) R T40%E % it fE AR #E 7] 722007 4F 7 A 25 H £200947 A 25 B ARTT{E ©



Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, none of the Company’s directors, chief executive and their respective associates, had any other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such director or chief executive is taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange.

B EXPIBEERESAEREAREARATLEMBRARFAEMNBRARETRERDIN  ABARFNES RRITHRABRREZHEAL
BERBCEZ LB IRDDEXVE L7 R8N BAME AR R KB 2 AR B R EALMARENAE (E& RE5 AR ERGIFEXVED) iy - 188
Bin RfE % 2 EmIOAR (BRREB(EF B HRIDEREXENEZTRESTRABMEE R ERBENEDEIRE) - IIRB(EFR
HIE 156 )F 352{F B AR R BIFEM B - iR EMRBIAMAE 2 RETRAIBME AN R MR 2 B KRR ©

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

T ERR N E A AT RANR FIRAD MABRAIR ) P R BV s B R

As at 28 February 2009, the interests and short positions of any substantial shareholders or other persons (not being directors
or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to

the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

20092 H28H - ERIEERRFEMAL(LIARANEETIESTRAR)ERRFRG & SEBROTHEEERBGES RBAEK
BIDEXVEBFE2RIDFRERAREEREKE - RERECES MEIRP)EIRAL AR R BB FHECHANER IR T



Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

BREEER.25TNEBR
% of total % of total % of total
Direct issued Short issued Other issued
Name Capacity interest  share capital position  share capital interest  share capital
HERTRE HEBITRE HEBTRA
=L L) ERES BYEIL RE BEEIL Hipias BEEAL
. ____________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Partner Logistics Limited Beneficial owner 152,960,914 73.25% = = = =
(note 1)(FifzE1) EREAA
Blink Technology Limited Deemed interest = = = = 152,960,914 73.25%
(note 1)(FifzE1) WARIERER 2 s
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy Deemed interest = = = = 152,960,914 73.25%
(note 1) WRIEER 2
A (Fiet1)
Prime Investments S.A. Deemed interest = = = = 152,960,914 73.25%
(note 2)(Fff7t2) WARIERER 2 s
Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. Deemed interest — — — = 152,960,914 73.25%
(note 2)(Fff7t2) WARIERER 2 s
Harshad Ramniklal Mehta Deemed interest = = = = 152,960,914 73.25%
(note 2)(Fff7t2) WARIERER 2 s
Notes: FffzE :

1.

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive director of the Company. By
virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Partner Logistics Limited.

b5 B AR B Partner Logistics Limited$% + 5272 A fBlink Technology Limited##5 J2#Z£] -+ MBlink Technology Limited B 78 A BT E F L 2 + 2 Il BHlzE g £ 2
E=A o RIEB(ES LEEEHI) « Blink Technology Limited + i % 2z 4 K #if 3 14 55 4 #5457 145 B B3 Partner Logistics Limited% 78 2 BB A& (D 2 125 ©

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Prime Investments S.A.
is the preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is owned as to 99.83% by Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L., which in
turn is owned as to 75% by Mr. Harshad Ramniklal Mehta. By virtue of the SFO, each of Prime Investments S.A., Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. and Mr.
Harshad Ramniklal Mehta, is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

|t 55 3 378 A% A% 15 FB Partner Logistics Limited$ 4 + 5% 2 &l fBlink Technology Limited# & &%l © Prime Investments S.A. & Partner Logistics Limited #7948 7t i% % % - il Prime
Investments S.A.-ZH Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.37599.83% * Mz A 7l 2 fiHarshad Ramniklal MehtaZt £ 575% ° RIE(EH M HEEH]) » Prime Investments S A.
Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. &% Harshad Ramniklal Mehta5t 4 % B #3#1% {158 i Partner Logistics Limited#5 8 < Fi & Ik < #zs ©

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any persons who had interests or short positions in the
shares and/or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, at any time following
the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date, to offer options to any
person belonging to any of the following classes of participants to subscribe for shares of the Company:

— any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any executive directors but not any non-executive director)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

— any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
— any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

— any person or entity that provides research, development or technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten years from the date
of grant of the option and the Company’s board of directors may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the
option has to be held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

As at 28 February 2009, the number of shares issuable under options granted pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme was
3,587,500 which represented approximately 1.72% of the then issued share capital of the Company. The movements in the
number of share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 28 February 2009 were as follows:
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Number Number Number Number
of share of share of share of share
Balance in options options options options  Balance in
issue at granted exercised cancelled lapsed issue at
Date of Exercise Exercisable 1 March during during during during 28 February
Date of grant acceptance price period 2008 the year the year the year the year 2009
12008 £ER £ER EER £ER 20095
3A1AZ Btz ez iz KMz 2H28A2
BB BHEH friEE e BRTES BREHE BREHE BREHE iBREHE BETEL
. ____________________________________________________________________________________________________|
25 July 2005 26 July 2005 to HK$1.76 22 August 2005 7,750,000 - 1,750,000 - 2,450,000 3,550,000
18 August 2005 (note 2)  to 25 July 2009 (note 6)
(note 1) (note 4)
200547 A25H 200547 H26A% 1761 200568220 % (PizEe)
2005%818H (f=k2)  2009%7H25H
Ciza)) GETY)
28 July 2005 8 August 2005 HK$1.73 25 August 2005 37,500 - - - - 37,500
(note 3)  to 25 July 2009
(note 5)
200557 A28H 200558 H8H B8173T 200568 725HE

iER) 20097 A25H
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Notes: [ff :

1. Due to the large number of employees participating in the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the relevant information can only be shown within a reasonable
range in this Annual Report. For options granted to employees, the options were granted during the underlying periods for acceptance of such options by
the employees concerned.

BN2E2003F I EIZEEABRS MR UEAFHRANGESERT - iR TEE <BIREN S @ BIRER L B RBR AR IES A DBk E 2 EEEE -

2. The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 25 July 2005 was HK$1.71, being the date on which the relevant
options were offered for grant.

AR RIE7200547 H25 A (ANA BB < B4 B B £ BB R PrikiS < Wi B A8 H1.717T

3. The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 28 July 2005 was HK$1.68, being the date on which the relevant
options were offered for grant.

RNRRERH 200557 A28 B (BNE MRS R 2 24 B Hi) I B8 S Freris 2 W B =75 #51.68 7T ©

4. As one of the conditions of grant, the grantee concerned a%reed with the Company that (i) 20% of the options granted can be exercised during the period
from 22 August 2005 to 25 July 2009; (ii) the next 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 January 2007 to 25 July 2009;
and (iii) the remaining 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 July 2007 to 25 July 2009.

MER—ERTIREM S - BEARZABERRIFRE : ()T 20%E 5% BRI R 7200558 A 22 H 2200947 425 B BiRATE ¢ (i) 5/M0%E &K HERERTK2007F1 A25H =
200947 A25 A HAAMTTHE ¢ K (iii) kTN 40%E 1% tH BB AR 42 A 70 20074F 7 A 25 H £20094 7 A 25 H HARTT{E ©

5. As one of the conditions of grant, the grantee concerned a%reed with the Company that (i) 20% of the options granted can be exercised during the period
from 25 August 2005 to 25 July 2009; (ii) the next 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 January 2007 to 25 July 2009;
and (iii) the remaining 40% of the options granted can be exercised during the period from 25 July 2007 to 25 July 2009.

FRE AR —IEE TR S - BREAZ ARKRAFGE (i) E R 20%E 5% H Ak E A 70200548 A 25 H 2200947 A25 B HIRTT{E ¢ (i) B5M0%E % H B A 72200741 A25H &
200947 A25H BARTT{E K (iii) 8k N 40%E 1% i BE A4 n] 7420074 7 A 25 H £20094F 7 A 25 H HARTT{E ©

6. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the date on which the options
were exercised during the period was HK$0.83.
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1,750,000 share options have been exercised during the year ended 28 February 2009.

Saved as disclosed above, no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
#Z22009F2 A28 H ILFE * #£51,750,000/8 REETE -
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The expiry of the exercise period is 25 July 2009, 3,587,500 options shall lapse on 26 July 2009.

The fair value of options granted estimated in accordance with the Binomial valuation model is disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements.

1TEERRIHA B A£200997 5258 - 3,587,500 M2 1555200947 H26 H 4K o
ER R ERER —BE T BRI AT AR BESR I HREM 28

Directors’ Interest in Contracts E=E4 485

The Group owes certain loans to Partner Logistics Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse
of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive director of the Company. The loans due to Partner Logistics Limited are secured and
interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate plus 2% per annum. During the year, interest expenses paid to Partner
Logistics Limited amounted to HK$1,155,000 (2008: HK$2,991,000).

Apart from the foregoing, no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

A& B /R Partner Logistics Limited (BB AR RIATTE S LE L T 2 BB HEIE £ £ G 8) A R])E TE © KPartner Logistics Limited#) &
REEER - FEREBRITRAZEREMN2%:TE - RAFER - EfJPartner Logistics Limited®) 4] 8. & F &7 %1,155,0007T (20084 : /&%
2,991,0007T) °
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Connected Transactions &35
Details of connected transactions during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

RAFEABER 5N FISENMERRMEES -

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities % & - tHE BRI AT EiHESH

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 28 February 2009.

REZE2009F2H28H IEFER - ARRIHEEAMNBARMEREE - HEXBEQARRRNEALTES °

Convertible Securities, Options or Similar Rights FJ#k#&% - RARESIALIER]

Other than the share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, the Company had no other
outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights as at 28 February 2009.

Bk EX A% EE 20035 AT &11R N 2 AN - NATFIN20095-2 H28 AL E H At RETTE 2 AIHAAEE 77 - SRS R LR -

Pre-emptive Rights &%&i#ikiE
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda.

ARBHRAIARRBREEPI BB EIR G - LULER INEARE HAR o

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings RITEZKHEMEE

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 28 February 2009 are set out in notes 19 to 22 on the
financial statements.

REER2009F2 A28 AR TER R EMiE EFBH N M EREMF19E22 -

Five Years Summary #F#E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 177 to
178 of the annual report.

AEENEAER AR RFENFEELEELRBEMBHNANFRE17T7EI78H °

Properties #1%
Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 179 to 180 of the annual report.

REEEEYENFIBRNAFERFE179HE1808 ©



Retirement Schemes &Rzt

The Group patrticipates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits schemes for all qualifying employees in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated income statement during the year ended 28
February 2009 amounted to HK$5,050,000 representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate
rates set by the local government of the subsidiaries.

AEEZBEEGCRHIEREEFTEEADRRE - BREEBEBIKINDERMNES  REMHIEATESFTEI([REEFTE]) - BB 22
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AFERERE -
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Public Float A% &

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the percentage of the
shares in public hands exceed 25% as at 31 May 2009, the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior to the issue
of this annual report.

RBEAQFEGHAMEN REAATESME - 72000E5 431 B (AIAERBITHBEZSERMSEERATAS) - AARALTHER
AT FR1B25% ©
Corporate Governance ©t%¥%&a

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to 84.

ARBBNERHRKRELEE R  ARAHETEEE AT RNBHENINES6E84H 2 BEEARE -



Audit Committee E%ZEE

The Company’s audit committee comprises of three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Mr. Peter
George Brown and Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin. Information on the Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 56 to 84.
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Auditors #Z£iam

Moore Stephens will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of Moore
Stephens as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EEGFTAEMAKER  HRERET - HFEESTMERMEEAR R ZBENREASR - BREESETNRRBFAE Ll -

By Order of the Board #Z =&
Yau On Yee, Annie HZ{&
Chairman =/

Hong Kong, 12 June 2009
&7 20096 A12H



Corporate Governance Report 5554

The Company is committed to the establishment of good governance practices and procedures. During the year ended

28 February 2009, the Company has applied the principles and complied with most of the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 as expressly
set forth under the relevant paragraph of the table below.

ARABRBNFERFERERTRRLIERF - REE20096F2A288 L5 - ARB-—ERARETEEHARZMERAAZFSF LMAR( E
mRA D14 E B EE AR R TAI([ DEEATR ) 2 RAI K KRB SF AR sFRANEXA.2.1 Z RBERRSN - BRI Z (RBEAAHEER IR
TRABBESE -

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the following corporate governance practices adopted by the Group
for the year ended 28 February 2009:

EESMAZIANEBNEZ200952 A28 IEFEEMIA T REERRE :

A.Directors £=%
A1The Board ££&
Code Principle F8/EA|
The board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the company; and be responsible for directing and
supervising the company’s affairs.

ESgAEARENEENR YARKREREEARNER -

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERFE adopted by the Group
FRIRBE RIS AEEFRMANEEERER
A.1.1 | The Board should hold at least 4 board Yes Five board meetings were held during the
meetings a year. year.
EERREFERELMREE = AFEEBRITHAAEEEER




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SF B GR SCHE E SFRIER 3 FEBRANEEERER
A.1.2 | All directors be given opportunity to include Yes Agenda for regular board meetings are sent
matters in the agenda for regular board to all Directors in advance and they are given
meetings. opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for discussion in the board meetings.
rREZREHERIAIINESETHERRER & PRESFNEHERNETAEREZTGRIE I A
HEIR - ey \EESE  UHNESS SR LW °
A.1.3 | Atleast 14 days’ notice be given of a regular Yes Timetable for regular board meetings are
board meeting. scheduled well in advance to facilitate and
maximize the attendance and participation of
Directors whilst reasonable notices are given
for all other board meetings.
DHEFSTHEREELE14KEBHA - = REALEATEFSTHEANRRER - UEE
MReEFHEXR2EEE  MAEHMESS
SHEOERTARIEAM -
A.1.4 | Directors should have access to advice and Yes Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary. service of the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”) to ensure
that the board procedures, and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.
EEERMEARIWENE R IR & ERTMBARBZARME([RAFAWENNER
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Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
FRIR B E Bl gR ST AEERMNEEERER
A.1.5 | Minutes of board meetings and committee Yes All minutes of board meetings and committee
meetings should be kept by company meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
secretary and open for inspection. and they are open for inspection upon
reasonable notice by any Director.
ARRAWERBFESFSERETZESNERH = MEESEEREESERLBHARWERT I
WARA SR eRHER EEMESZFHAEBA T ARERgRLHHES
ﬁ,ﬁ o
A.1.6 | Minutes should record sufficient details, Yes Minutes of the board meetings and the
concerns raised and dissenting views. committee meetings have been recorded
Draft and final minutes should be sent to all in sufficient details in respect of the matters
directors for comment and records within a considered by the Directors and decisions
reasonable time. reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft
and final minutes were sent to all directors for
comments and records within a reasonable
time.
CRLBELERAFE - BREMRENRESNR & SEENEECERNGRLE  BERADFHA
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Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SF B GR SCHE E SFRIER 3 FEBRANEEERER

A.1.7 | Agreed procedure for directors to seek Yes There are procedures to enable the
independent professional advice at company’s Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
expense. independent professional advice at the

Company’s expense.
ERGAANGTERT  FEEFECRBUEXER = ERIFTREFEEFREREER  BRBELEER
EBRERBARXM - R BERABRABARAXN -

A.1.8 | If a substantial shareholder/director has a Yes If a substantial shareholder/director has a
conflict of interest in a material matter, board conflict of interest in a material matter, such
meeting should be held. Such director must matter would not be dealt with by way of
abstain from voting. circulation or by a committee but a board

meeting would be held, during which such

director must abstain from voting and not be

counted in quorum.

Independent Non-executive Directors who

have no material interest in the transaction

would be present at such board meeting.

EREEERR EFUESATHEEFANZER & = EETIERRAEBETEETEH TERNZTERF
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TR

RENSHEELZEQRE  MEMRZZIEETE
BEE M= BRE ERERARRTFTERE
ETEANEA o

ERGHUEEEAN GBI IR TEEERZLE
FHREFge=

SR




During the year ended 28 February 2009, the full Board held 5 meetings and details of Directors’ attendance are set out

below:

RELZE2009F2828H It FE - EE2EEH

BEFSEH  SEFHFCHEFBOT

Number of meetings G
Directors 5%
Executive Directors: BITES:
Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman) L& (EF)
Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman) |mEXKEIER)
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael R

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence ZRFH

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy A E

Peter Gerardus Van Weerdenburg BIRE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFHITES
Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC

Peter George Brown BRR

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin
(appointed on 30 November 2008)
Siu Ming Wah

Notes: [ffzF :

SEIERE (722008411 A30 B EE(E)

AR

1. Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy resigned as an Executive Director on 26 May 2008.

A& S AT 200845 A 26 H BHI I TE SR ©

2. Mr. Peter Gerardus Van Weerdenburg resigned as an Executive Director on 10 June 2008.
B 15 5 102008556 A 10 HBHER I TE RS
3. Mr. Siu Ming Wah resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director on 30 November 2008.

AL AETA2008 11 A 30 A BT B FEEN 1 TE RS ©

4. Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

AEE A R R EL T 2 B -

Attendance HE X
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A.2Chairman and Chief Executive Officer = J& KT,
Code Principle FE/EA|
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the company’s business at the board level to ensure a balance of power and authority.

EZEENEERARNBEREBERAEESZSRRMBBRERD - ERIE N EEE 2 BT -

executive officer should be clearly established
and set out in writing.

ITEETHASENACERAERY  BBEREILLA
EEIIH

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BREHE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E SFRIR REBRMANEXEERER
A.2.1 | Separate roles of chairman and chief Deviation The Chairman and the Chief Executive

Officer of the Company are held by separate
persons. The Chairman, Ms. Yau, is
responsible for the Group’s overall strategy
and corporate functions. The Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Huang, is responsible for the
business strategy and delivering business
results. Under Mr. Huang'’s contract with the
Group, he is under the direction, supervision
and control of Ms. Yau, but the Company’s
practice is to require that all major strategic
decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant
committee of the Board, as duly constituted.

TERTBAFEATRALEE TEBLXLEE
AEEEEBRENERBY - MITBASETER
BEEBRBIIERAREE - RIFEELELE
BRI 2B/ BRRBRE2iEE BB REE
WARFZEBREMBEIBRRIBEFTSXIE
AERZEESHAEESFL -




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
FRIR B E S BI g ST AEERANEEERER
A.2.2 | Chairman should ensure that all directors are Yes The Chairman accepts the responsibility to
properly briefed on issues arising at board ensure that major issues of the Company are
meetings. addressed by the Board, and that these issues
are presented in a manner which facilitates
thorough discussion and resolution and all
directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at the board meeting.
IREERANEBESEHINETSSZ L ARE = FRAEREME  UBRAARFEFTHAESS
HISEIE ° BRIE - HZEFHEREEREN®MRERZ AR
RE MEFLERLAAEFTEENTEND
FIH -
A.2.3 | Chairman should ensure directors to receive Yes The Chairman, assisted by other senior
adequate information in a timely manner. executives, ensures that Directors could
receive adequate information, which must be
complete, reliable and in a timely manner.
FEEBRESFRIZHEM  MBEBEATYE = TRAEMBSRITHRA B HE) T HERES KK
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A.3Board composition =& #HAK
Code Principle FE/EA|
The board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the

company and shall include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors so that independent
judgement can effectively be exercised.

EXESRRBRBAREBMAGBESMBERENLR - EFSPNTEFEIFNTEF L ESBZRFNEE - MERHBRUIEL B
B o

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance adopted by the Group
=EHE
SF RIS SFRIER 3T AEERMNEEERER
A.3.1 | Identify independent non-executive directors Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors of
in all corporate communications. the Company are expressly identified in all

corporate communications that disclose the
names of the Directors of the Company.

il

FIBERARENT  BZARKABLFERTESL ARBMARBESHRNAREATD - REH
o B IFATESZTZHD -

The Board comprises a total of seven Directors, with four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. More than one-third of the Board is Independent Non-executive Directors and more than one of them have

appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise as required by the
Listing Rules.

EFemaAtREREAN  BEONRRTEER=EBUIINTES - EZTGBB=7 KERBUIIFNTES  MBB—2BIF
WITESABLTRIREZAEEXRERNS A ARV FERFT R -



A.4Appointments, re-election and removal Z{f - E#FAE
Code Principle <FEIEA|
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors and plans in place
of orderly succession for appointments to the board. All directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

EXRGITER KEREZRAUABAELHMESTZMARERF  URREARFIESKENE - MAEEHERERE TRHEALTE

% o
Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance adopted by the Group
RE/E
FRIR B E Bl gR ST AEERANEEELRER

A.4.1 | Non-executive directors should be appointed Yes All Non-executive Directors of the Company

for a specific term, subject to re-election. were appointed for a specific term, subject to
rotation and re-election pursuant to the Bye-
Laws of the Company.

FMTEFNRERARTEES  WARKKEE - = B FMTESFNZEHAREEH  WARER
ARZ Re B wE R EREE -

A.4.2 | All directors appointed to fill casual vacancies Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company,
should be subject to election at the first all Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy
general meeting after their appointment. would be subject to re-election at the next

following general meeting.
FEREMGERERMEZENESREEXTRE = BIBARA 2 ARIMAIZES6(2) 1K * FIE REHER
BEOBERRRARG FEFIER - RERMEZENESEE TARRAG LEXE
1 o
All directors are subject to retirement by Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the Company,
rotation at least once every 3 years. every Director shall retire by rotation at least
once every three years.
FBEEERBRESR KIPB=F—R- = BEBEARRE 2 ARIHABIES7Q)G - BRESZARE

TR BRIB=FR-




The Board received from each of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy and Mr. Peter Gerardus Van Weerdenburg a resignation
as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 26 May 2008 and 10 June 2008 respectively and the said
resignations were accepted.

The Board also received from Mr. Siu Ming Wah a resignation as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 30 November 2008 and the said resignation was accepted.

The Board has appointed Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 30 November 2008 in place of Mr. Siu Ming Wah.

All of the Directors, including the Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 29 July 2008, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert retired by rotation as a director of the Company and was re-
elected as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for a term of three years.

The Board has received from each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers each of the three Independent Non-

executive Directors to be independent.

EEeRANER AL NBREEASA 25 0 9D BI20084E5 26 H K2 2008F6 A 10 B LEHE AR R TE S 2 BTE o Fili 2
BOEEESEN -

EFeRERRELE Z 28 0 N2008F 11 AS0R BB EARFEUIFATEF R - LH2RCREZTSHMN -
EXSEREFERAERARARZBIIFNITEST U RBEHEHELLE - £ HBR2008F11 4308 °
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A.5Responsibilities of Directors E=& (T
Code Principle <FEIEA|
Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibility as a director of a company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of that company.

BREFARBHEERARNEETZRE URRARZERLENTN EHEPHRER -

receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction, and subsequent briefing and
professional development as necessary.

BEHZENEZRESE2E  EARRKEMRKRE
SVEZRR - HIRMAI RFBZEBAFNNALEE
B o

Pl

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BEHZE adopted by the Group
SRR SFRMR S AEERANEEERER

A.5.1 | Every newly appointed director should Yes A tailored induction would be provided to

familiarize the newly appointed director
with the Company’s business operations
and financial positions, his responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory
requirements.

Subsequent briefing and professional
development would be provided to the newly
appointed director as and when necessary.

MEENESHEREHRSEMRMMER - LA
BARREBEBERPBHON - ARBIREER K&
B EMRA - ERREAEREREBEER
ETHBE -

HWEBE  HEATERHRENESREMTEL
BNTERERER -




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SF B GR SCHE E SFRIER 3 FEBRANEEERER
A.5.2 | Functions of non-executive directors should Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors
include those as set out in the Code Provision brought independent judgments during their
A.5.2 of the CG Code. participation of board meetings and gave
advice on strategy and future plans of the
Group.
The Independent Non-executive Directors
reviewed the financial statements and
operational performance of the Group on a
regular basis.
The Independent Non-executive Directors
also served on audit, remuneration and other
governance committees of the Board.
FEHITEENREEEECEE AT Z TR = BUNTEFEESTS SR LRASRENRRE

FA520RFTERRRE o

Bhm kRS SR M B REER

BIUFATESTHEMNARENMBER K EE
= o

BYFRTEERBLIRREZES  FHMEES
REMERRZEEERE -




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SRR E RIS AEERANEEERER
A.5.3 | Directors should give sufficient time and Yes Satisfactory attendance at the board meetings

attention to the company’s affairs. and other committee meetings was shown in
various meeting attendance.
The Executive Directors have contributed
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group.

BRI B S0 R R B A BRI R AR TS o & BEFGNHEMBESER I HERSAWME - I
BB o
HITESS SR FHE RS MR ERET o

A.5.4 | Directors must comply with their obligations Yes The Company has adopted the Model Code as

under the Model Code as set out in Appendix set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as

10 to the Listing Rules and the board its own code of conduct regarding Directors’

should establish written guidelines on no securities transactions.

less exacting terms than the Model Code

for relevant employees in respect of their Specific enquiry has been made with all

dealings in company’s shares. Directors and the Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 28
February 20009.

EEREET AR+ 2GRESFR]) - MES = RRARIEMEFETHNRB SRR S - KA LR Ak

SNEREHESESARRMBTEEIES - 18
SRR RN R ETADRER -

8+ 2 (RET RINERA R R HIREESTA o

KEEEEEELIETEDN 0 HE2009%2 A28H
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A.6Supply of and access to information &2

K fE

Code Principle FE/EA|
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information so as to enable them to make an informed

decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

EXREREIRHEEEN  FTESEHEZREEBRERN B TELATE - WABTHRE REE -
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BREHE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E SFRIR AEERMNEEERER
A.6.1 | Agenda and board papers should be sent to Yes Agenda and board papers are dispatched
directors at least 3 days before the intended to all directors or committee members not
date of board meeting or committee meeting. less than 3 days or such other agreed period
before the date of meeting.
BENREZENHENEHESTTERNEEEY = EEgRR R XHINESEREEGEREH
a% BRI =RABELTES - AP =R E 2 SRAIE L TRAEESE
ZEgKE -
A.6.2 | Management should supply the board and Yes The Chief Financial Officer and Company
its committee with adequate information in Secretary attended all regular board meetings
a timely manner. Each director should have and board committee meetings to advise
separate and independent access to the on accounting and financial, corporate
company’s senior management. governance and statutory compliance matters.
Senior management have formal or informal
contact with the board members as and when
necessary.
ERERNEEFSELEZESEREHEHNE & RAARMBEERAAIMELEMEEZTERES
B BRESRARITTEBARAARREBEAEN ZEEZEHEE  URE LYK - ﬁ%ﬁié‘&

BRI o

BTEERVEEREER - AR ER  sfEE
[EBRE ERIFIER RIFIEAEE




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SRR E Bl gR ST AEERANEEERER
A.6.3 | Directors are entitled to have access to board Yes Board papers and minutes are made
papers and related materials. available for inspection by the directors and
board committee members. The Company
responded as promptly as possible to any
queries raised by the Directors.
EREREHESTS X RERER = EEEXHREBELABAHREERESTEZERERE

B - FREFRLAERE
BEREAYEE -

AR ERIELER

B.Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management =% k&SR %EEA B HH
B.1The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure i & 1 55 £k F M A2 AR
Code Principle 8R4
A formal and transparent procedure should be established for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

ERAERMABRAENER - UHFIAERTETHENBRNEEMAETNHMTE - EF T

SSETEAZHME -

R/ BATBEE - IRAB/ERE - MARREXE
=l

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BREEZSE adopted by the Group
FRIR B E S Bl gR 32 AEERANEEERER
B.1.1 | Company should establish a remuneration Yes The Remuneration Committee was
committee, majority of whom should be established in 2002. It comprises four
independent non-executive directors. members, a majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.
NAERIFMEE S - AEOKERABELIFH & HME B 2200256/ - HMEEEHMUEKE
TES - MR REBDKEBHARARRIZBULIFITES -
B.1.2 | Remuneration committee should consult the Yes Please refer to the section below.
chairman and/or chief executive officer about
proposed remuneration of other executive
directors and have access to professional
advice where necessary.
LS SR AT ESNTMERZRAER = BRETX -




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SRR E SF AR AEBRANEEERER
B.1.3 | Terms of reference of remuneration committee Yes The role and authority of the Remuneration
should include the duties as set out in the Committee, including those set out in Code
Code provision B.1.3 of the Code. provision B.1.3 of the CG Code, are clearly
set out in its terms of reference which are
FEZE RS EEaECEE TR = posted in the Company’s website and in
f'?KXB.1.3{|7RfEHEE"]HﬁE\ ° compliance with the provisions set out in the
B.1.4 | Remuneration committee should make Yes CG Code.
available its terms of reference, explaining its
=t =4 e NN
role and the authority delegated to it by the FHEReACKIED - BREXRERTAMZ
board. SFRMEXEBASRAEE - BRHTINEBESE
N BEAXHERARAREERRTahEER
FHEEREANERENE RERACRES = FRIF B FRIRS -
%%&E’\Jﬁéﬁj
B.1.5 | The remuneration committee should be Yes The Remuneration Committee is provided
provided with sufficient resources to discharge with sufficient resources, including the advice
its duties. of professional firms, to discharge its duties, if
necessary.
FMEEgRERTEARERABITARE = FHNEESRREHATER  BE(NEFTE)ER

iﬁr%eﬁ ABITEEE -




The principal responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure in relation to the remuneration of Directors and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee met thrice during the year ended 28 February 2009 and the individual members’
attendance records are set out below. In addition, during the year, the Remuneration Committee also received a number
of reports and proposals from executive management in relation to remuneration issues of the Company for their review
and/or approval as required.

FNZEeNEIZRERNESSRUAMETLSAEEASFHNBRMEBNER  YANESSTHATENTEE BRI HEH
B o

FMZEENEZE2009F2H28 A ILFEERIT=REH @ @ARIKEHLFLENT - BN - HFMZEENFATKEITEABMERE
MEFMEE 2 RERER - WIRBAFTETUEM R4 -

Number of meetings 2EHA 3
Members 4= Attendance HERE
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin (Chairman) FIERE(ER)

(appointed on 30 November 2008) (722008411 H30HEZ ) 1
Chui Chi Yun, Robert BELC &
Peter George Brown BRI 3
Yau On Yee, Annie BB {3% 2
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy HEIE 1
Siu Ming Wah FREhEE 2
Notes: [fft :

1. Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin was appointed as member and Chairman on 30 November 2008.
FIFRESEERN2008F 11 A0 A BRERKERESE ©

2. Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie was appointed as member on 21 May 2008 in place of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.
EBE{EZ 1200855 A21 BEZERKE + UIRHZEEREEZNE -

3. Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy ceased to be a member since 21 May 2008.
LS Sp 4 B 200845 A21 HAEE IH/ER—BKE ©

4. Mr. Siu Ming Wah ceased to be a member since 30 November 2008.
LRSS 2 B 2008F 11 B30 BB IFIEIER— RS -

The Remuneration Committee has considered and consulted with the Chairman of the Board the following proposals:
(a) reviewed the service contract for executive director;

(b) reviewed and approved the annual performance bonus policy and the granting of discretionary bonus to both senior
executives and other employees of the Company.

FNZEECERRAEFSEF AN MNITERE
(a) BETTTESZ ZIRBEEX -
(b) BEIAUHERR BN FERARR R ASRITHAE RE RS EWBIBIEAL -



C.Accountability and Audit & ki
C.1Financial Reporting 8175
Code Principle FE/EA|
The board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the company’s performance, position
and prospects.

EZgRHAFNKRIR  BARASRAENTE  BWEEEFZ2H -

MBOGIRRIE B IRIBAVRTE

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BREHE adopted by the Group
SRR R <F AR AEBRPNEEERER
C.1.1 | Management should provide explanation Yes The management provided explanation and
and information to enable the board to make information to the Board in order to enable the
an informed assessment of the financial Board to make an informed assessment of the
situations. financial and other information submitted to
the Board for approval.
EREERRAESSRHFELEN EFESg0n = EREENEESREBREREN  BESZRIER

TEFEREZHBREMERELBREANF
%0




Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
FRIR B E S BI g ST AEERANEEERER
C.1.2 | Directors should acknowledge their Yes The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
responsibility for preparing the accounts, on for preparing the financial statements of the
a going concern basis and there should be a Group and presenting a balanced, clear and
statement by the auditors about their reporting comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the performance.
financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the
The Corporate Governance Report should Group for the year ended 28 February 2009,
contain sufficient information to enable the Directors have selected the appropriate
investors to understand the severity and accounting policies and applied them
significance of the matters at hand. consistently; approved the adoption of all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
EERARBRSRFBELLEREKRENEL - Mix = Standards which are issued by the Hong Kong
Y EN BB ISR ZEEHREPBERES Institute of Certified Public Accountants; made
{ETm{EH E2RE - judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable; and prepared the financial
e OREESH S T HEE  FISEEPRQ SR statements on the going concern basis.
EHOBRBELEREE °
The relevant responsibility statement from the
C.1.3 | Board should present a balanced,. clear Yes external auditors made p&lrsuant to the CG
e _unde_rstandable assessr_nent n ‘?”?”“a' Code is set out in the Report of the Auditors
and interim reports, other price-sensitive
: ) on page 85 to 86.
announcements and other financial
disclosures under the Listing Rules and e EE EER A E B ERE - LA
reports to regulators required to be disclosed BRI T RN R E S o
pursuant to statutory requirements. - ‘ :
G-y = b Z< =3 s
ERGEELTE SRR TRRONE - A5k 2 ERA T ATT009F 211280 L S H

EHRARENFREPHRE HREHER
fh R EMM B RE R AEE B RIREAGIRTEAR
THRENEHO®RSE

B BEFCKENERERGECGTHER &
RMEBEAMASEMZMBEERETEMBERE
R EHEIBESE Z HIE K AE - URIRFER
SRERUPEEHREK

SNERZBENVRIBE R ERTRIFEL 2 ARAEER
RSN BIRN 5 5585586 & ©




C.2Internal Controls A EFE5iE
Code Principle FE/EA|
The board should ensure that the company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the company’s assets.

EXEeREREENBEERSARRZEMAAYR  URERRKENEBEE -

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BREHE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E SFRIR AEERMNEEERER
C.2.1 | Directors should at least annually conduct a Yes Please refer to the section below.
review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the group and state so in
the Corporate Governance Report.
EEREDBFRE —IRRE E A EE R HIE K & A2HTX
M WHEPKERREPERBBRE -
C.2.2 | Board should annually review to consider Yes The Board has considered the adequacy
the adequacy of resources, qualifications of resources, qualifications and experience
and experience of staff of the company’s of staff of the Company’s accounting and
accounting and financial reporting function, financial reporting function, the continuing
and the training programmes and budget. professional education undertaken by the
relevant staff.
EXeFETRIK  BENZRAREER & EXSCZRARAES T NI FE RBEL 7 HA
MBERBETENER BEIERRKERES BR FHABIRHREZIXEI  BEIERRERE
# - URBIMRMEINFIREREEBRENSR BRH -
B °

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to
safeguard the Company’s assets and manage risks. The executive management has been delegated the responsibility
of identifying and evaluating the risks faced by the Group and of designing, operating and monitoring an effective control
system.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group’s assets, providing
reliable financial reporting and complying with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems and procedures are also
established to identify, measure, manage and control, rather than eliminate, different risks arising from different business
and functional activities.




The Group’s Internal Audit Department plays an important role in the internal control function. It provides objective
assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established
processes and standards by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group, typically over a three-
year cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising annual audit focus and audit frequencies) is prepared based on the
development’s independent risk assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the
beginning of each financial year. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the Audit Committee for review and all
recommendations from the Internal Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Directors have received the report from the Internal Audit Department which
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group.

The scope of work performed by the internal audit function during the year included financial and operational reviews,
recurring/surprise inventory counts and audits, and special reviews.

In March 2008, an independent international professional accounting firm was appointed by the Board to assist

in conducting a review on the Group’s system of internal controls and to provide recommendations on areas for
improvement. The review covered the material controls on the Group’s operations in Hong Kong and Shenzhen
including the financial, operational, compliance and risk management functions of the Group. The report of the review by
the independent international professional accounting firm (“June 2008 Report”) has been discussed and adopted at the
Audit Committee Meeting held on 16 June 2008.

Another review on the Group’s internal control system was conducted in March and April 2009 by the independent
international professional accounting firm. The aim is to obtain the views of an independent international professional
accounting firm on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls in specific areas of the Group’s
operation which included the commission system of showroom and the bonus system of Hong Kong employees and the
follow up on the six high priority issues identified in June 2008 Report.

The management believes that such a review is educational to the colleagues of the Group and raises their internal
control awareness positively. The management is committed to continuous improvements and since the issuance

of June 2008 Report, an Internal Control Review Committee (“ICRC”) comprising the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the Internal Audit Manager, has been set up to oversee the implementation of the
recommendations raised in the June 2008 Report and the continuity of internal control focus within the Group.

All recommendations for rooms for improvement identified in June 2008 Report have been adopted in accordance with
the schedule. Another 4 recommendations which are targeted to be completed in the financial year ended 28 February
2010 and the recommendations identified in the second review report will also be followed up accordingly.

The second report of the review by the independent international professional accounting firm has been reviewed and
adopted by the Board on 9 June 2009.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the Group is effective and will continue to review and update the
system to ensure that shareholder’s investments and the Group’s assets are safeguarded.
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C.3Audit Committee EZZE S
Code Principle <FEIEA|
An audit committee should be established with clear terms of reference, including formal and transparent arrangements
for considering how it applies the financial reporting and internal control principles. The audit committee should maintain
an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors.

BERZEQAARENMNBESE - REAZENFRAMEHRSE AT EZERAIEL L - EREESRERARRZEEMRISER K
AMF o

ol

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SRR R SF AR S AEERANEEELRER
C.3.1 | Full minutes of the audit committee meetings Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
should be kept and sent to all audit committee Audit Committee of the Company, the minutes
members for comment and records within a of meetings were circulated to all committee
reasonable time. members.

The minutes were kept by the Company

Secretary.
ERZEENTRER LR TRE N —RE & REARFZECZZEGZRERE  g3L8CE
BREAEAEZEZEGLBKE  HKEXREER BHTEREREKE -
RANGEZA -
BRLEB N AWERET ©
C.3.2 | A former partner of the company’s auditing Yes No member of the Audit Committee is a
firm should not act as a member of the audit partner of or has financial interest in the
committee. existing auditing firm of the Company.
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Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SFRMRBLE SF AR TEBRANEEERER

C.3.3 | Terms of reference of audit committee should Yes The terms of reference of the Audit
include the terms set out in Code provision Committee, which included the role and
C.3.3 of the CG Code. authority delegated by the Board together

with the terms set out in the Code provision
ERZEgNREGEESREARE S TR z C.3.3 of the CG Code, are available at the
X C.3. 3IRFTH IR - Company’s website and on request.

C.3.4 | Audit committee should make available its Yes
terms of reference, explaining its role and ERZRENREREC ERESTRTARAR
authority delegated to it by the board. #7 - ERERERTARCISEAMNAAFE

U WIREK AR °
EZZEeRAFEARESE HEEACKES =
A?*%%ﬁé/\ ZHVRES) -

C.3.5 | Disclosure of any disagreement between Yes The Audit Committee recommended to the
the board and audit committee on selection, Board to reappoint Moore Stephens as the
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors subject to the shareholders’
external auditors. The Company should state approval at the forthcoming annual general
the recommendation and reasons for taking meeting.

a different view by the board in Corporate

Governance Report.

REZGHHE  ZF  FHEXEBRIINEZERTE = BB ERE T B STt EEA
EREZEEGREROE  HAELERE - XAFIE RHNEIZERD - BEREREERITHRRBS KX
ErEEARETHNEREZEENEERESS 2 o

FAEEENRA -

C.3.6 | Audit committee should be provided with Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the

sufficient resources to discharge its duties. Audit Committee of the Company, the Audit
Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources, including advice from external
auditors and Internal Audit Department, to
discharge its duties, if necessary.

EREZEGRERRARERABITERE - & BERARFIEZZESGNREDSE  FREEEC
EREFEZEIR - SIEINEZEE R A EZ B

ER(WMBERE)  UnBEITERE -




The Audit Committee was established in 1998. It comprises three members who are all Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures, review of the Group’s financial statements and review of the relationship with the
external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee met thrice during the year ended 28 February 2009 and the individual members’ attendance
records are set out below:

EZEZBEIM998F K - B=RKEHK - FTBKEHABYIERITES °

ERZESTERAOERN REEAREE 2 MERREIE RN EERER - BEHAEEI B IR ARRN RNARINEZEE 2 @R -
%Vi/\lﬂ EEFQGE%EW/}\EH%

RBIE2009F2H28R ILFE - EXZE L AR=ZAgH  ERIKELHFEHFBNOT

Number of meetings 2E8A 3

Members BE Attendance HER#

Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman) BEC(ERF) 3

Peter George Brown BEE, 3

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin eI 0
(appointed on 30 November 2008) (FA2008F 11 A30HEZET)

Siu Ming Wah L 3
(resigned on 30 November 2008) (FA20084F 11 A30 A B fT)

The amount of fees charged by the Auditors generally depends on the scope and volume of the auditors’ work. For the
year ended 28 February 2009, the remuneration payable to Moore Stephens was approximately HK$2,925,000 for audit
services and HK$16,000 for other assurance services.

ZERWE N E AECRNE TIESE R TEE - #22009F2 A28H [t FE » I FHEMES AT EETRENE 4 AE 2,925 0007T
N E B ARTS & 4 A 75%16,0007T ©

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during the year:

ERZEENEAN 2 TERMAT

(a) discussed with the external auditors the general scope of their audit work;
EENIRAZ BUAD 5 o AR BU TS5 E -

(b) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board in respect of the audit fee proposals for the Group for the year
ended 28 February 20009;

EH UM AEEHE2009F2H28R I FE 2B ERANEZTSIELES

(c) reviewed and approved the Group’s internal audit policy and internal audit plan for the year 2009;
22 B B A 7R SR B 2 20095 P ERAZ BUBUR I A EB Iz B AT 2

(d) reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of internal controls;
H B IEA R BT 2 AEB R EURE

(e) reviewed the audited accounts and final results announcement for the year ended 29 February 2008;
FEHEE2008F2 A29H |IEFE 2 KEZIRE REFEE QM

(f) reviewed the Interim Report and interim results announcement for the six months ended 31 August 2008; and
FEHEE200858 H31H L/ A 2 F1 Bl s R ERZEE AW - &

(g) reviewed the mternal control review report on the Group’s operations.
EHEEAEELE 2 N B mE o

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 28 February 2009 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
REBEHE2009F2H28R I FE 2 FROHBZLZESEN -



D.Delegation by the Board E=&# i@
D.1Management Functions &2
Code Principle 8R4
A company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the board for its decision. The board

should give clear directions to management as to the matters that must be approved by the board before decisions are
made on behalf of the company.

RAEBE—REANEEFEER - JIHFRIBZESSERATENEE - EFSERRIAWEHLIRTER - EABEREEBRLFRAHE

FEhE -
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions _REFE adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E SF AR REBRMANEXEERER
D.1.1 | The board must give clear directions as to Yes Please refer to the section below.
the powers of management, particularly on
delegation to management and those required BRI o
prior board approval.
EEQUARERENES L TIEMHES - & =
FIRMERBRENEAZANSESTGHASSE
e
D.1.2 | The company should formalize functions Yes
reserved to the board and those delegated to
the management.
NREEEXTARRESSEIENBEE N T EE =
E eV EAE °

The Board is collectively responsible for the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board is responsible for making decisions on major operational and financial
matters as well as investments, and overseeing the management of the business. Matters reserved to the Board for

decision include significant financial and legal commitments, material asset acquisition or disposal, the change of share
capital, the approval of financial reporting and budget.

The general management and day-to-day operations, including preparation of annual and interim reports and accounts
for board approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
monitoring of operating budgets, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management

procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations, are delegated to the
management team of the Group.

It

EXgHAEEEREAREXRBRER  BERRTEREE EFGAANEENUKEER  URKREHHEFELARAER - LEREKH
EETHE HEFERENFEHEBREAMBLERAGH EREERBILE - RAZH - #EMBHRE AR -

BREENREE BEREHRFHRNTHREEREUHEZTERARZRAEL - ATEFTSRANEBRELES
EiERANMERERGMRARERRZF - URETHBAEZLNRALRIEE  HRXAFKEETEERE -

\
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D.2Board Committees EE€#E £ 8g
Code Principle <FEIEA|
Board committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees’
authority and duties.

BEEgBE TREESNNUEIREENSTRESE  BRIHESSRILEBE -
Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions BEHZE adopted by the Group
SRR SFRMR S AEERANEEERER
D.2.1 | Clear terms of reference to enable committees Yes Please refer to the terms of reference of
to discharge their functions. the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.
ROBRETABESE  EAREEGRNERET =
HERRE o Board committees report their findings,
D.2.2 | Terms of reference should require the Yes dleelgios el recgmmendations oiirie [Eeed
committees to report their decisions or at the Board meetings.
recommendations to the board.
BR2HAARABEREZEGRFTNEE S BES
BEGSEEATZESZESRNEFTGERLRTENL = &l -
e
EE g LB eR EESREaTRESZGER
HASHER /?%m&ku%




E.Communication with Shareholders 2t ER Y& R
E.1Effective Communication AxU&E
Code Principle 8R4
The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual general
meeting or other general meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation.

EEgRENERFFERFTYG  LEREERRAFASHEM 2 RERERTBARBBRESH -

201 % % A MR EXBA - MAMEEMARERK
gms  AAERGSRTHELRI0EEERAEX
AN ©

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =B/E adopted by the Group
SFRMR OB E SFRIR S AEERMNEEERER

E.1.1 | A separate resolution at a general meeting Yes Separate resolutions are proposed at the
on each substantial separate issue should be annual general meeting (“AGM”) on each
proposed by the chairman of that meeting. substantially separate issue, including election

of directors.

ERRRE L gRFFEEAREBEERBINEER = RERRBFRG(REBEAE])  EHBEER
BRI HARZESR - BUFR(EERES)ERRIIRER

E.1.2 | Chairman of the board should attend the Yes The Chairman of the Board and a member of
annual general meeting and arrange for the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
the chairman of audit, remuneration and Committee attended the 2008 AGM and were
nomination committees to attend and be available to answer shareholders’ questions.
available to answer questions.
EEGTIRREERRBEARE  ULHEZES b= EFgIFhAET—EEREEGRFMEE SN
g FHEEELREZESIRHFERRAFAK BHHF2008FRRBERG VNG FEERM -
SWNE FEIZRR -

E.1.3 | Company should arrange to send at least 20 Yes The Company has given at least 21 days’
clear business days’ notice to shareholders of notice to shareholders to attend the 2008
annual general meeting and at least 10 clear AGM of the Company which was held on 29
business days’ notice for all other general July 2008. (Code provision E.1.3 only became
meetings. effective on 1 January 2009.)
WMBRRERE  RABLHERGRITAIZLR = A FIE 5200847 A29 H #1772 2008 F IR R IBF K

SRIAARE XN D21 BHEEA o (SFAHEX S
E.1.315H2009F1 A1 B4R )

The Company establishes and maintains different communication channels with its shareholders through the publication
of annual and interim reports and press releases. Such information is also available on the Company’s website and the
website of http://tsl.etnet.com.hk. The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board.

ARBEBTIEFR  PHRE SRR BERRET WA TREBERE - ARERTIEN AR R E Rhttp://tsl.etnet.com.hk4E
B -BRBFASRBERRHESZGIRELZERTE -




E.2Voting by Poll ABZH KR
Code Principle <FEIEA|
The company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

NAERERBIR T RREHNARARNFHARE -

the detailed procedures for conducting a

poll are explained at the commencement of
the meeting and answer any questions from
shareholders regarding voting by way of poll.

TEERASHAREREBENRETAETER
REVER - U RBERREURETARRERFD
EAREER

Pl

Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
Summary of Code Provisions =ERE adopted by the Group
SFRMRCELE SF AR 3L AEERANEEELRER
E.2.1 | Chairman of the meeting should ensure that Yes Details of the procedures for conducting a poll

have been disclosed in the Company’s AGM
circular to shareholders.

The Chairman of the 2008 AGM has
explained the procedures for conducting a
poll at the commencement of the meeting and
was available to answer the questions from
the shareholders regarding the poll voting.

MEEDARRNFAEFTRARARBRRTH
B3 IR ER o

BED T FE N 2008F I B F K2 5 IR ARTE A
BEFRNETRANERF RASREHREZESAR
SREVIRR o

At the Company’s 2008 AGM, all the resolutions were taken by way of poll and Tricor Secretaries Limited, the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted.

RARF2008FRRBFARE L IARBRAURESRETRR  ARAEBAEFERNEFPELH RS ENERNKARARE

FEE

A BRHBRREFRE -




Report of Independent Auditors =~ zetps=

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

BB E (EFR) BRAF
2ERR
(RERETMH T ERLE])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”)

and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 176, which comprise the consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 28 February 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

ARZEENATEHEHM D EERIN BN FE7TAEEZ176 AHmBIRE (BB BRAR(EAR D REMBAR A THAEI EEE D eviRa K
Hx - HPERER2009F2A28AMGA MARIEERER - BEZALFENGERGER  KARaEIRNGR RS RNERNLER G
TSR 2 A0 ELAth P SR

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

EEMEA UM BHRRBEAENET

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AAEFAREREFESTMASBEMNEEMBRE LI RFBRTRIIRESRT - RELEEQNFHIIRZFFAMBEHREK - BEEER
ERET - B ERE LA RN RU BRI AMNANBIES - UREELRS MWK N ERREF e R MG BH E AR -
BEVEREENSFEE  RREA MELAEN S 45T

Auditors’ responsibility Z&emaIE £

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

HANBEERBRBERMANEXZSESVBREIBRER  WIRRARF1981FRAVEF0RERN 2 RMRRSE Btz ih - NRERIEEA
BE - NZBED T @R AR EARREAEMALE ESRBEEFEE

BMEREBLEHPLRBHOBEBEAETRR  BLEUSTRMYTEERE - LRBRITEE - NARRTI R HHH
REFFEEMEABRRIL -

BRSRPITRANERE @GR BRI SEREEEHNERERE - METHRRXTURNZEENHE - 215 E BN EEFRERT
BHGANBRRFEEAHERBMNARE - EFGEZERRE - ZBEE BEZ ARG MEE QT B S M SRR AR A EHES -
UHREHEENEZEN - BXFSHRTNAMEFNREERER - BRNERTEEEMRANGHBERNEE LALLM HEETH
BN - URFERAVFRERNEEIHRAA -

BIEE - RAFFESNERERERTRNER M ARMNERE LIRHER -

Opinion %

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 28 February 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

HPRR - ZEGREVBRRCREFTEMBRELENEEMAFHRE E/FNE S5EN2009F2A28HNEHNR - k. EEEEHE
ZALEFENMBRBESRE WO RREB R AIGHINREREZARE -

Moore Stephens

Certified Public Accountants
905 Silvercord, Tower 2

30 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 12 June 2009

BEES ST
HESE

FBH L F2HI905 %
FE R E3055%
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Consolidated Income Statement &4 uz5=

for the year ended 28 February 2009 ;%2009 2 F28H |- F/E

Year ended Year ended
28.2.2009 29.2.2008
HZE2009F H Z=20084F
2H28H L F[E 2A29BItFE
Note Fff7t HK$’000 &%+t HK$’000 ##F 7t
Turnover =20 2&11 1,959,396 1,917,467
Cost of sales SHERA (918,260) (898,714)
Gross Profit ESH 1,041,136 1,018,753
Other income and gains E YA 3&11 37,028 7,579
Selling expenses HEEA (806,558) (731,972)
Administrative expenses 1T E A (107,080) (126,771)
Profit from operations | 164,526 167,589
Finance costs B 75 & 4(a) (7,454) (9,857)
Impairment loss on land and buildings T AR F 2 (B E 1R - (1,825)
Negative goodwill on acquisition of UzhE — P B R RIEES MRS 2
additional interest in a subsidiary BEE — 1,502
Gain on disposal of land and buildings HE L REFRF 2,464 =
Profit before taxation R A 2 F 4 159,536 157,409
Taxation BiE 5(a) (35,022) (46,053)
Profit for the year REERF] 8 124,514 111,356
]
Attributable to: B :
Equity holders of the Company PiN/NG ) 104,800 99,240
Minority interests DEIR RS 19,714 12,116
Profit for the year REERF 8 124,514 111,356
]
Dividends RE 9 10,440 2,088
]
Earnings per share SREF
Basic N 10(a) 50 cents 48 cents
Diluted e 10(b) N/A N/A

The notes on pages 94 to 176 form part of these financial statements.

FIAEF176 AMMIEB A BREK—E5 o



Consolidated Balance Sheet 2 5xaE%

at 28 February 2009 720092 H28H

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 A28H 20082 729H
Note ffi& HK$000 5%+t HK$000 8%+  HK$000 #%F7  HK$000 BT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERRE 12(a) 134,625 138,375
Other asset HiEE 14 500 500
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 24(b) 26,732 18,883
161,857 157,758
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7E 15 760,761 865,594
Trade and other receivables FEUBR 2% % E A e MR 16 162,501 156,590
Current tax recoverable A E AR 24(a) 116 44
Cash at bank and in hand BIIERERE 17 127,121 78,998
1,050,499 1,101,226
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERBR I S E A FE Sk 18 (891,765) (524,340)
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEX - HHER 19 (22,468) (25,804)
Bank loans - secured RITER—FER 19 (74,374) (78,797)
Other loan - secured HiEH—BiHA 20 (14,552) (14,552)
Other loan - unsecured H &R — E R 21 (311) (1,782)
Obligations under finance leases BEREHRE A 22(a)
— current (173) (865)
Current tax payable R R ER R 24(a) (79,179) (96,874)
(582,822) (738,014)
Net current assets RESERE 467,677 363,212
Total assets less current HEERRBAGLSE
liabilities carried forward 629,534 520,970



28.2.2009
200962288
HK$'000 j##F 7

Note fizF HK$'000 7557t

29.2.2008
20085229
HK$'000 j&%F 7

HK$'000 i Tt

Total assets less current

EREERARSAE

liabilities brought forward 629,534 520,970
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank loans — secured RITER—HER 19 (12,640) (32,320)
Other loan - secured Hi gz — G 20 (6,962) (21,514)
Other loan - unsecured Hit B — EAR 21 - (312)
Obligations under finance leases RMEREAE - JAREBH R 22(a)

- non-current (308) (126)
Employee benefit obligations EERNED 23 (22,323) (17,671)
Deferred tax liabilities BREBERE 24(b) (6,885) (777)

(49,118) (72,720)

NET ASSETS BERE 580,416 448,250
-
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREE
Share capital [ 25(a) 52,203 51,766
Reserves (=4 459,847 349,865
Total equity attributable to ARRRRENL

equity holders of the Company B 512,050 401,631
Minority interests SYRRES 68,366 46,619
TOTAL EQUITY BEEeE 580,416 448,250

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 June 2009
EE2R2009F6 A 12 B 12N T A] T2
Yau On Yee, Annie %1%

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence Z2Fi Directors #%

~— — — —

The notes on pages 94 to 176 form part of these financial statements.
FIUEF176 AN EBAMBIHRE 5D -



Balance Sheet c=a&

at 28 February 2009 720092 H28H

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092 F28H 2008F2A429H
Note iz HK$000 5%+  HK$000 &%+  HK$000 #%F7  HK$000 BT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BEREE 12(b) 4,652 5,615
Interests in subsidiaries MIBA AR 13 507,735 560,011
Deferred tax assets EENIEEE 24(b) 612 2,602
512,999 568,228
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits Hib W - &e
and prepayments PSENES 16(e) 1,137 230
Cash at bank and in hand BIIERERAE 44 22
1,181 252
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals Hi T R et B 18(c) (5,131) (5,346)
Other loan - unsecured Hin &3 — B 21 (311) (1,782)
Obligations under finance BEMEARE
leases — current — REBH 22(b) (62) (841)

(5,504) (7,969)
[ e
Net current liabilities REAE (4,323) (7,717)
Total assets less current BEERRBEE

liabilities 508,676 560,511
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other loan - unsecured Hin &3 — B 21 = (811)
Obligations under finance REMRERE

leases — non-current —IEAREBE 22(b) - (62)

- (373)

NET ASSETS EERE 508,676 560,138
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERR 5
Share capital RA& 25(a) 52,203 51,766
Reserves =2 26 456,473 508,372
TOTAL EQUITY BRAH 508,676 560,138

Apgroved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 June 2009
E=g7200956 A 12 B 1% & Al FI %

Yau On Yee, Annie %%
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence %21

Directors %

The notes on pages 94 to 176 form part of these financial statements.
FUEF17T6 AN BANBHRE —AH ©



Y/

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A H'E¥,%§,%
/Z AN ’%fm @J%

for the year ended 28 February 2009 ;%2009 2 F28H |- F/E

Attributable to equityholder of the Company

AARRRIE
(Accumulated
losses)/  Proposed
Share-based retained final
Share Share Capital compensation  Exchange profits dividend Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reseve  (2:tEE)/ RRAH Total interests  Total equity
A R BhiEE  ROBERRE 5 e RARM RE a8 DURRER ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BT BETT BT BT BB
|
1 March 2007 #200753A1A 51,766 116,634 97,992 4,154 8,149 (3,086) - 275,629 31,679 307,308
Share option expenses BIRERS - - - 333 - - - 333 = 333
Lapse of share options BRI - = = (231) = 231 - _ _ _
Release of reserves on BREENBAR

disposal of a subsidiary FelE - - 25,987 - - (25,987) - - - -
Increase in interests in HB A RER

subsidiaries - - - - (197) - - (197) (3,148) (3,345)
Exchange difference on HENBARSBRE

translation of financial LERER

statements of subsidiaries - - - - 26,626 - - 26,626 5,972 32,598
Proposed final dividend RERER S - - - - - (2,088) 2,088 - - -
Profit for the year FREF = - - - - 99,240 - 99,240 12,116 111,356
29 February 2008 and 2008527298 &

1 March 2008 200853A1A 51,766 116,634 123,979 4,256 34,578 68,330 2,088 401,631 46,619 448,250
Lapse of share options BRER = = = (1,339) - 1,339 - - - -
Share options exercised BIRERTE 437 3,599 - (956) - - - 3,080 - 3,080
Release of reserves due to BREENBAR

disposal of subsidiaries EL - - - - 853 (853) = = = =
Exchange difference on HENBARSHRE

translation of financial LERER

statements of subsidiaries - - - - 8,803 - - 8,803 2,034 10,837
Transfer to capital reserve E NG - - 25,729 - - (25,729) - - - -
Dividends paid BIRARE = = = = = (4,176) (2,088) (6,264) - (6,264)
Proposed final dividend RERER S - - - - - (6,264) 6,264 - - -
Profit for the year EREF - = = - - 104,800 - 104,800 19,713 124513
28 February 2009 72009524 28H 52,203 120,233 149,708 1,961 44,234 137,447 6,264 512,050 68,366 580,416



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement s34 52%

for the year ended 28 February 2009 #;Z2009F2528H IFF/E

Year ended Year ended
28.2.2009 29.2.2008
#H Z£20094F #H ZE2008F
2A28AILFE 2A29RIFE
Note pfizt HK$’000 i## T+t HK$’000 j##+ ¢
Operating activities REED
Profit before taxation B A AT 2 F 159,536 157,409
Adjustments for: HEIEE ¢
— Finance costs —HBER 7,454 9,857
— Gain on disposal of land and buildings —HE L REF AT (2,464) =
— Impairment loss on land and buildings — i RAEF ZREEE = 1,825
— Negative goodwill on acquisition of — B —ME A mlEESN
additional interest in a subsidiary Rz aEE = (1,502)
— Loss on disposal of plant and equipments —HEmE M EEEER 343 296
— Depreciation — e 47,054 40,060
— Interest income — WA (312) (491)
— Equity-settled share option expenses — SRR A B R AR S - 333
— Impairment loss on club debenture —eEEREEREER = 103
Operating profit before changes in EEESRBAIKERT
working capital 211,611 207,890
Decrease/(increase) in inventories F&ERAL,/ (%) 104,833 (344,005)
Increase in trade and other receivables JRE Ui B 3 % L Ath JRE U R 2 A (5,911) (13,633)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables FESTBR FR N EL b B RK
CRia), /140 (132,575) 166,050
Increase in employee benefit obligations 1E B @ FIZ B0 4,652 6,835
Cash generated from operations HRUXBELHRE 182,610 23,137
Tax paid B8
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBHER (18,100) (11,364)
— Overseas tax —gsMRIA (36,871) (26,317)
Net cash generated from/(used in) TESEBEE (FTA)M
operating activities HEFEE 127,639 (14,544)



Year ended Year ended

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
H ZE20094F HZE2008F
2A28RIFFE 2A29H L5
Note FfizE HK$’000 i&# Tt HK$’000 i#&# Tt
-
Investing activities REEH
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment X fBEAE - = & 12(e)
o (44,602) (48,273)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEDE « BEMEE
equipment IRCEeE 4,455 257
Payments to acquire additional interests in X TSR A Bl RS ME
subsidiaries EOINEeN = (909)
Interest received BUFIE 312 491
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFMEANREEE (39,835) (48,434)
Financing activities RMEED
Capital element of finance lease payments ENEERERENERE S (921) (1,150)
Proceeds from share options exercised BB IR TIE TS A 3,080 -
Proceeds from new bank loan HERIT BRI IE = 70,117
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (19,103) (15,000)
Repayment of other loans EREMER (16,335) (89,775)
Interest element of finance lease payments AR E BN S B D (44) (119)
Interest paid BEfFLE (7,410) (9,756)
Dividends paid BEAREE (6,264) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REER (FTAH),EEMN
financing activities B&FE (46,997) 4,317
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRRLEEY
cash equivalents #hn, Gl ) EE 40,807 (58,661)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REIHWRLSRRESZEY 53,194 80,692
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes HNETE RSB B 10,652 31,163
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REENBEERRLSZEY 104,653 53,194
'
Analysis of balances of cash REeRRESZEY 2 EBRDH
and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand WITERRES 127,121 78,998
Bank overdrafts RITEX (22,468) (25,804)
104,653 53,194

The notes on pages 94 to 176 form part of these financial statements.

FIAEF176 AMMIEB AT Rz —25 o



Notes to the Financial Statements &175=pxpi::

1 Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which include all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of preparation of financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the preparation of the financial statements for
the year ended 28 February 2009 are consistent with those adopted in the financial statements for the year ended 29
February 2008, except for the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs as explained in (c) below.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

1 FEEFHR

(a) E{IZAH

R BHREERBREEGTMAR (BB SMAE DEMNB BN BHmEEA ([ HEMHREER]] - HaERE R EREABIE
HRELER - HBEHEA((EBGER D RZRB) AREERREOINBRERTERE - HEMBRRNMTAEBHARIMERAF]
B EmARR ETRAD R EREERE -

(b) B RR S RALELE
REAI AR RRAE LR AL A BEE -

BRERAN T 3 () BPTI#T AT MAHERT BB G I EERISN - REEE2009F2 A28 IFFEMBHREMRA T EGABRRLAE T EE
BE20085F2 529 R L FE M IS MAPTERAE — 28

REATGHRKR TR AR R B Z e R 2 HEEEET|H -

TXEFIREBFRAEZSTBOROME -



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
During the current year, the Group has adopted the following amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations which are
effective for annual accounting periods commencing on or after 1 March 2008:—

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
Amendments
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

The adoption of the above amendments and new interpretations has had no material impact on the accounting policies
of the Group and the Company and the methods of computation in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the directors to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities are as follows:—
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Judgments and estimates (continued)
(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation charge in the future periods.

(ii) Net realisable value of inventories
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. The directors
reassess the estimations at each balance sheet date.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Judgments and estimates (continued)
(i) Allowance for bad and doubtful trade and other receivables
The Group determines the allowance for bad and doubtful trade and other receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history of the customers and other
debtors and the current market condition. The directors reassess the allowance at each balance sheet date.

(iv)Share-based payments
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payments requires
determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payments are disclosed in note 28.

(v) Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and temporary difference can be utilised. Significant
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 28 February 2009. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used into line with those used by other members of the Group.

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is a company in which the Company, directly

or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls more than half the voting power or controls the
composition of the board of directors or over which the Company has a contractual right to exercise a dominant influence
with respect to that entity’s financial and operating policies. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if the Company
has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from their
activities.

The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions,
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Basis of consolidation (continued)

1S

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. This
method involves allocating the cost of the business combinations to fair values of the assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Any excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as
goodwill. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment. Any excess of the Group’s interest in fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to

the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Basis of consolidation (continued)

==

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make good the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of the asset or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

TR (&)

(e )Z HE(E)

hﬂ%ﬁ4ﬁh$%\mgﬁtﬁwg AR A D B R M as - RIRZAE h 8RR R AL D@ AR D B R s O — *%Eﬁ@ﬁﬁl%
=Sk - D BBRESAANREEEL A MEBRERI - HHBAREREEEN  RAKEZ#ESOREMEXEEN -
EWREIAEELATAEN D BB R ESRIGEIR/L -

I EERE

WEFRBEREIRESXAREE(FE  BERBREEMITEEERINETFERERE - MEfAZEEZIROESMHE - BEZA
R AZEESEMBREELEN 2 ERBEREAABEBRLERRZESE - ERERNEEETE @ MRIFXEETBRERMD
BESANEEMAFUBELRSAA  EEAT - IROSEDIREEMBREELEMET -

REBRENEERMERAE WD SHERNER - FHACEREER - A ARRSRERTRRARTSIECEBKRABEIEE
RrE R 2 HATREIR R IREIE - MEBERELHFE S WaERME -



1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.

(g) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less provisions for depreciation and any impairment losses. Details are
set out in note 12. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after the item has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged
to the income statement in the year in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the item,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the item. When an item of property, plant and equipment is sold,
its cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial statements and any gain or loss resulting from the
disposal, being the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is included in the
income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(9) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the estimated economic useful lives of the individual assets,

as follows:—

Leasehold land and buildings over 55 years from the date of purchase
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 11to 10 years

Plant and machinery 3 to 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years

(h) Leased assets
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases.

The leasehold interest in the land held for own use is accounted for as being held under an operating lease where
the fair value of the interest in any buildings situated on the leasehold land could be separately identified from the

fair value of the leasehold interest in the land at the time the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee, or at the date of construction of those buildings, if later. In case the two elements cannot be
allocated reliably, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and carried at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)
(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets, are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation of assets over the term of the
relevant leases or, where it is likely the Group or the Company will obtain ownership of the assets, the life of the
assets, as set out in note 1 (g) above. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 1 (f) above. Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to income statement over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to income statement in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals, if any, are charged to income statement in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment losses.
Results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(i) Inventories

==

(i)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses

of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets include trade and other receivables and are classified and accounted for as loans and
receivables. Financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Any changes in their value are recognised in the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at each balance sheet date whether or not there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment loss on loans and receivables

is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all the amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include bank and other borrowings, and trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transactions costs incurred and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m)Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional
currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at

the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in
the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m)Foreign currency translation (continued)
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arises throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

(n) Provisions
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company or Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Employee benefits
(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(if) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and contributions to the retirement schemes operated by the relevant authorities for employees of the
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Malaysia are recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred, except to the extent that they are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

(ili) The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service amounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method by a qualified actuary, discounted to its present value, and the fair value of any related plan assets
is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund Notes that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Taxation
(i) Taxation for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Taxation (continued)
(iii) (continued)
Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences arising
from goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination). In respect of taxable temporary differences arising on investments

in subsidiaries, deferred tax liabilities are recognised except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Taxation (continued)
(iii) (continued)
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

(iv)Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:—

¢ in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

* in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:—

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:—

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts and returns.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rental are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Interest income
Interest income from bank deposits is accrued using the effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(r) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred except where they relate to the financing of major capital projects where they
are capitalised up to the date that the assets are brought into a working condition for their intended use.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition, less advances from banks repayable within three months from
the date of the advance. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

(t) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:—

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group
and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence;
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Related parties (continued)
(i) the party is an associate of the Group;
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;
(iv)the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its parent;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has chosen geographical segment information as
the primary reporting format. No business segments analysis of the Group is presented as all the Group’s turnover and
trading result are generated from the manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery products.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well

as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and fixed assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are between group enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be
used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and
financing expenses.
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2 Turnover &%

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery products. Turnover represents the
sales value of jewellery products sold to customers.

AEENEZXEBRRE  HEMEEREEH - EXERRHELRTLPUEAMHHEEE -

Other income and gains Hfblg A

Year ended Year ended
28.2.2009 29.2.2008
HZE20094F #HZ=20084F
2H28HIEFE 2R29R It F[E

HK$’000 %% T 7t HK$’000 &%+

Rental income el A 651 468
Interest income SN 312 491
Foreign exchange gain P& 3 e 751 3,151

Compensation received for early termination EEBRIEEYZ BEESIMA
of lease in Hong Kong 28,783 —
Others EAh 6,531 3,469
37,028 7,579

Profit before taxation Bx#%a1ZF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B riZFI 230 (GTA) :

Year ended Year ended
28.2.2009 29.2.2008
H=2009F #HZ=20084F
2A28HIEFE 2A29B ILEFE

HK$’000 /% F 7t HK$’000 &%+t

(a) Finance costs (a) AEER
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITEFR B TS 5,520 6,255
Interest on other loans H A EFREFE 1,890 3,483
Finance charges on obligations A& T &R
under finance leases P ER 44 119
7,454 9,857
- -
(b) Staff costs (b) BIAA
Contribution to defined contribution AEHFRKETE
retirement plan R 5,050 5,487
Expense recognised in respect of long E R RERE & MR H
service payments (note 23(a)(ii) and (iii)) (Mf7E23(a) (i) X (i) 4,652 6,835
Retirement costs RIRFTEI A 9,702 12,322
Equity-settled share option expenses PABR AR £ 8 > BB AR AE S - 316
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TARHMER 281,723 269,868
291,425 282,506



4 Profit before taxation (continued) Bx#:aTZF|(4)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued) B FIEAEHEG,(GTA) : (8B)

Year ended
28.2.2009

H 220094
2A288IEFE
HK$’000 ## Tt

Year ended
29.2.2008

H 220084
2A208 1L FE
HK$’000 i## Tt

(c) Other items

Auditors’ remuneration
— current year provision
— prior year underprovision
(Reversal)/Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation
Operating leases charges
— land and buildings situated in Hong Kong
— land and buildings situated other than
in Hong Kong
Gain on disposal of land and buildings
Loss on disposal of plant and equipments
Reversal of provision for inventories
Rentals received/receivable from properties
less direct outgoings of HK$76,000
(2008: HK$55,000)

(c) EAbIHE

Z AN

NEERE 3,140

NEFERETE =
RIZOR (B[R], Bt (265)
H T A 918,260
e 47,054
KEHEEH

—BAEZ THREF 71,565

— BB L RIEF

16,001

HE i TR (2,464)
HEMRE k& EER 343
FEAERE (6,201)
Bl R ERSREE S H

#5#676,0007T

(20084 : ##£55,0007T) (575)

3,298
167

697
898,714
40,060

66,432
12,956

296
(6,200)

(414)

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$54,285,000 (2008: HK$51,291,000) relating to staff costs, auditors’ remuneration,
depreciation expenses, operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above in note 4(b) and 4(c) for each of these types of expenses.
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LETHEE AR A A5 154,285,0007T (20084 : 7B #51,291,0007T) ° A BSEE



5 Taxation @&

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Revenue Bill 2008, which reduced the Hong Kong profits
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%, and accordingly Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is similarly charged at the appropriate

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

R2008F6H26H © BEILAEBIB(2008FWAMEHIESR) - BFIEHTRBR17.56%ME16.5%  FtL - BB FSH IR B 6 I AR & A

16.5%(2008F17.5% ) VB K51 H - /NI E A RIM A AR K @R IRITH B U A HE -
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:— &R ER A+ —

Year ended
28.2.2009
H=20094F
2H28HIEFE
HK$’000 & Tt

Year ended
29.2.2008
#HZ=2008F
2A29H IEFE
HK$’000 & Tt

Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax AEARLE — FEFEH
Tax for the year INEERIE 5,655 6,592
Underprovision in respect of prior years A FERETR 2,397 209
8,052 6,801
Current tax — overseas REABE B
Tax for the year RNEEHIE 27,412 31,859
Underprovision in respect of prior years DEFERETR 1,181 -
28,593 31,859
Deferred tax (note 24(b)) IESERLIE (P 5324(b)) (1,623) 7,393
35,022 46,053



5 Taxation (continued) 778 (%)
(b) Reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation in the consolidated income statement is as follows:—

BRELRT B A MER S Wa R ATRIIHIBZ SR - —

Year ended Year ended

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

#HZE20094F H=2008F

2H28HIEFE 2H29H I FE

HK$’000 i&# Tt HK$'000 &%+t
|
Profit before taxation R RTZF 159,536 157,409

Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated
at the rates applicable to profits in the

BRI RES R
EER R

countries concerned BRI B A B R AR08 37,458 33,190
Tax effect of profits entitled to tax exemption AZHARESHATNHEYE (11,619) (989)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR H B 2 5,406 23,144
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARHBANH BT E (5,812) (13,458)
Tax effect of prior year's tax losses RAFEBREFERIEN

utilised this year Bimsse (200) (4,745)
Tax effect of temporary differences not REER S = B ) F1E 7 28

recognised 550 3,817
Tax effect of prior year's temporary RAFEEREF LR

differences recognised this year ZRNHIBFE (1,365) 1,823
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised R KR8 AR T IE R 1B ) fr 18 2 2 560 1,385
Underprovision in respect of prior years AEFERETR 3,578 209
Tax effect of change of tax rate PR T B & - 1,677
Tax effect of witholding tax at 5% on the RSB EE A R HRBIRK 2 i/

distributable profits of the Group’s R Z DR 5% &

subsidiaries established in the People’s AR MR IETE

Republic of China 6,466 =
Taxation RiE 35,022 46,053



6 Directors’ remuneration Z=¢
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:—

RiE ETEDINFB(RRIGIDE161ERBENERHEMT : —

Year ended Year ended

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

#H £20094F H=E2008F

2A28HIEFE 2H29R IEFE

HK$'000 &%+t HK$’'000 ##T 7t
]
Fees wE 1,080 1,020
Salaries and other emoluments e REMME 7,016 9,107
Performance related incentives 13538 MRS 2 22 5,325 7,072
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RIREAET IR 42 48
Share-based payments LARE R (&1 — 190
13,463 17,437

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$1,080,000 (2008: HK$1,020,000) paid to the non-executive
directors during the year.

EEMeBFRAN TIERTEZHNHEE%1,080,0007T (20084 : £#1,020,0007T) °



6 Directors’ remuneration (continued) ¥ =% (4)
Contribution
Salaries Performance to retirement
and other related benefits Share based
Fees emoluments incentive scheme payments Total
Hek HRIAER RRET
e H 4] SHEIfR LARRIA A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT BT T BT T BT T
]
Year ended 28.2.2009 EZ2009F2728H
Executive directors: HITES :
Yau On Yee, Annie P2 5% - 2,784 3,003 12 - 5,799
Erwin Steve Huang BEK - 1,747 1,350 - - 3,097
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael R = 753 252 12 - 1,017
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BER - 952 720 12 - 1,684
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy Fiipealcs = 510 = 6 = 516
Peter Gerardus Van BIRE
Weerdenburg = 270 = = = 270
- 7,016 5,325 42 - 12,383
Independent non-executive BYIEHTES -
directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert BEC 360 - - - - 360
Peter George Brown BEHE, 360 - - - - 360
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin R 90 - - - - 90
Siu Ming Wah g 270 - - - - 270
1,080 - - - - 1,080
1,080 7,016 5,325 42 - 13,463



6 Directors’ remuneration (continued) £ (41)
Contribution
Salaries Performance to retirement
and other related benefits Share based
Fees emoluments incentive scheme payments Total
ek ERINAERE ERAEF
we H B 2 B SHEIftR LARR A (B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BET T BT T BT T
]
Year ended 29.2.2008 B Z2008F2A29H
Executive directors: HITES :
Yau On Yee, Annie i - 1,200 600 12 4 1,816
Erwin Steve Huang |HEK - 1,440 840 - 4 2,284
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael R = 715 300 12 3 1,030
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence LR - 864 432 12 9 1,317
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy g = 3,088 4,000 12 85 7,185
Peter Gerardus Van B
Weerdenburg = 1,800 900 = 85 2,785
- 9,107 7,072 48 190 16,417
Independent non-executive BYIEHTES :
directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert BE 360 - - - - 360
Peter George Brown BRR 360 = = = = 360
Siu Ming Wah b 300 - - - - 300
1,020 - - - - 1,020
1,020 9,107 7,072 48 190 17,437



7 Individuals with highest emoluments &&#& A+
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2008: four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 6.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2008: one) individuals are as follows:—

EhasaMe ALd  MA2008%F : UK )AES - AEESFFEENKITE6 - Hea=4(2008%F : —%) ALTHBSR%NT « —

Year ended Year ended

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

#HZE2009F H 220084

2A288IEFE 2A208 1L FE

HK$’000 # %+t HK$’000 ##F 7t
]
Salaries and other emoluments e kEme 3,107 1,056
Performance related incentives ER R IF FERE 2 158 5,389 10,338
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RO EH B R 28 12
Share-based payment LARR (B - 6
8,524 11,412

The emoluments of the three (2008: one) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:—

Z=%(2008%F : —R)REMEALHMESEATEEA : —

Year ended Year ended

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

HZz=2009F HZ=20084F

2H28HIEFE 2A29H IEFE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AEK
|
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T £ 7%2,000,0007T 2 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 755,000,001 7T & 75,500,000 1 -
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 75111,000,0017C 2% #11,500,0007T - 1



8 Profit for the year &FEZH|

The profit for the year includes a loss of HK$48,278,000 (2008: profit of HK$350,763,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

REEZRBABIE—ZD I ARR R ERE BB 148,278,000 T & 18 (20084F : 7#:#350,763,0007T 2 F)

9 Dividends &2
An interim dividend of HK$0.02 (2008: HK$NIil) per ordinary share, amounting to an interim dividend of HK$4,176,000 (2008:
HK$Nil) was declared and paid during the year ended 28 February 2009.

A final dividend for the year ended 28 February 2009, of HK$0.03 (2008: HK$0.01) per ordinary share, amounting to a
final dividend of approximately HK$6,264,000 (2008: HK$2,088,000) is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. These financial statements do not reflect this final dividend payable.

REZ2009F2 A28H IEFE - B A KIKRER R HIIR B A E AR E0.027T(20084F : BEEZ T ) 425851 4,176,0007T (20084F : /5
BCEIT) o

#H 2200942 A28 H |4 E /) A HARS B &A% I E AL B #50.037T (2008 : B %£0.017T ) A2 EE 475 156,264,0007T (20084 : 75%£2,088,0007T ) #%
IARRBIEERRBFAE LIRE - APEMERILERMILBRMNES -

10Earnings per share &k&7|
(a) Basic earnings per share &RxEARZEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company in the
amount of HK$104,800,000 (2008: HK$99,240,000) and on the weighted average of 208,375,721 ordinary shares (2008:
207,063,221 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.
BREARFRRBAFENARBEEEE AEIGATE%104,800,0007T (20084 : ##£99,240,0007T) * U RFRE ZEITE B2
ANFEF ¥ A% £7208,375,721 % (20084F : 207,063,221 % AR )5t & -

(b) Diluted earnings per share &p%EEZ R
Diluted earnings per share is not shown for the year ended 28 February 2009 and 29 February 2008 as the exercise
price of the share options of the Company outstanding during the year was higher than the market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the suspension of trading in the shares of the Company and, accordingly,
they had no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per ordinary share.

HARAR B REFEARNEATEZBREZ I TEERARRERRZEEEERNAIZMEAS @+ Bitt - EHSR LB 2 EAZF I E8%
B E MIAERH|EE200952 A28 H 200842 A29H IFFE v FREHE AT

ot

11Segment reporting » &f#kE
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s geographical segments. Information relating to geographical
segments based on the location of assets is chosen because this is more relevant to the Group in making operating and
financial decisions. No business segments analysis of the Group is presented as all the Group’s turnover and trading result
are generated from the manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery products.

DEHEMERASEN RS MEH2M - BERBEEMEMEMRUEAMEI B ZER  DEAHEEHHAKEERZE RMHR
REEEA - ARNTRENEXBRLEXRENRERE  HEREEREEH - MU BIRHARAKE 2 XBER D -



11Segment reporting (continued) % #B3Hk & (41)

PRC (including Inter-segment
Hong Kong and Macau) Others elimination Consolidated
HE(RERARERN) Hity AHEEHEE maBE

Yearended Yearended VYearended VYearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended
2822009  29.2.2008 2822009  29.22008 2822009  29.2.2008  28.2.2009  29.2.2008
HZ2009F HZ2008F HZ2009F HZ2008F HZ2009F HZ2008F HZ2009F HZ2008F

2A28H 2A29H 2A28H 2A29H 2A28H 2A29H 2A28H 2A29H
HEE HEE HEE 20084 HEE 20084 HEE 20085
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BETFT BT BT

Revenue from external customers KEINRZERMA 1,928,236 1,879,932 31,160 37,535 - - 1959396 1,917,467
Inter-segment revenue AEREMRA 7,233 14,995 - - (7,238) (14,995) - -
Other revenue from external customers KENREF
A E AR 37,090 7,038 (62) 541 - - 37,028 7,579

Total pate] 1,972,559 1,901,965 31,098 38,076 (7,233) (14,995) 1,996,424 1,925,046
-
Segment results DS 163,520 163,902 1,006 3,687 - - 164,526 167,589
Finance costs BIEER (7,454) (9,857)
Impairment loss on land and buildings ~ +it kEFREEE - (1,825)
Gain on disposal of land and buildings £ & HitRiEFEF| 2,464 -
Negative goodwill on acquisition of WebE— R 1 A1 EEAN

additional interest in a subsidiary HxvaRE - 1,502
Taxation I (35,022) (46,053)
Profit for the year AEERF 124,514 111,356
-
Depreciation for the year REEHE 46,815 39,678 239 382
Significant non-cash expenses ABFREIH

(other than depreciation) (FERIN) 343 296 = =
-
Segment assets PHEE 1,222,013 1,269,466 31,361 39,693 (67,866) (69,102) 1,185,508 1,240,057
Unallocated assets RORAE 26,848 18,927
Total assets BELE 1,212,356 1,258,984

Segment liabilities AEaE 389,633 513,993 69,998 76,305 (67,866) (69,102) 391,765 521,196
Unallocated liabilities KABEE 240,175 289,538
Total liabilities BfEEE 631,940 810,734
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________
Capital expenditure incurred KEEREER

during the year BRRRX 44,984 47,944 29 329



12Property, plant and equipment %% - #E k&#
(a) The Group KZ£E

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Plant and Motor
buildings equipment machinery vehicles Total
i R~ HE
REEY) e BB K as RE “azE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BT T ST
'
Cost R
1 March 2007 M2007F3H1H 97,273 198,186 15,551 2,991 314,001
Exchange adjustments FEE 3= - 6,076 153 85 6,314
Additions e - 47,901 313 59 48,273
Disposals HE — (4,113) (474) (355) (4,942)
29 February 2008 1200842 H29H 97,273 248,050 15,543 2,780 363,646
Exchange adjustments FEE 3= - 2,741 78 44 2,863
Additions 18 = - 44,725 139 149 45,013
Reclassification EL Ak | - 1,725 (1,725) - -
Disposals HE (2,085) (7,160) (978) - (10,223)

28 February 2009 2200952 5 28 H 95,188 290,081 13,057 2,973 401,299




12Property, plant and equipment (continued) #)% - [ M35 5 )
(a) The Group (continued) ZA&£E (%)

Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Plant and Motor
buildings equipment machinery vehicles Total
T &R KE
BEEY) ] R E K 2s Y 1azE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT ST IT ST

]
Accumulated depreciation ZHFE
1 March 2007 K2007F3H1H 23,408 145,309 12,346 2,275 183,338
Exchange adjustments D 5 A= - 4,324 73 39 4,436
Charge for the year NEFFE 1,902 36,344 1,303 511 40,060
On disposals HE — (3,756) (277) (355) (4,388)
Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE 1,825 - - - 1,825
Reclassification BEHHE = 15 (15) - -
29 February 2008 720082 H29H 27,135 182,236 13,430 2,470 225,271
Exchange adjustments D 5 A= - 2,170 34 34 2,238
Charge for the year NEFFE 1,848 44,406 513 287 47,054
On disposals anfi=— 171) (6,918) (800) - (7,889)
Reclassification BEHHE = 644 (662) 18 -
28 February 2009 7200942 A28 H 28,812 222,538 12,515 2,809 266,674
Net book value BREFE
28 February 2009 7K2009F2 A28 H 66,376 67,543 542 164 134,625
]
29 February 2008 7200842 A29H 70,138 65,814 2,113 310 138,375



12Property, plant and equipment (continued) ¥ - k= & &% & )
(b) The Company &2 &]

Furniture,

fixtures and

equipment

&L~ RE

P&

HK$'000

BT

|

Cost AR

1 March 2007 M®200743A1H 569

Additions e 7,212

29 February 2008 7200842 H29H 7,781

Transfer B 1,488

28 February 2009 200942 A28H 9,269

|
Accumulated depreciation BiHinE

1 March 2007 #200743A18 27

Charge for the year INEEITE 1.895

29 February 2008 74200842 H29H 2,166

Charge for the year RNEEHE 1,936

Transfer [EF 515

28 February 2009 200942 A28H 4,617

|
Net book value IR R E

28 February 2009 7200942 A28 H 4,652

29 February 2008 720082 A29H 5,615



12Property, plant and equipment (continued) #)% - &&= & & (&)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:—

VEREFENSTOT : —
The Group Z<&H
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 i&# Tt HK$’000 & Tt
-
In Hong Kong EEH
— Long-term leases — RS 6,780 6,951
— Medium-term leases — RS 59,596 61,239
66,376 68,190
Other parts of the PRC FERR B HAthith 75
— Medium-term leases —hHifE = 1,948
- 1,948
66,376 70,138

At the balance sheet date, the property ownership certificates in respect of the property interests held in other parts of
the PRC have not been issued by the relevant PRC government authority. The net book value of the properties was
HK$NIl (2008: HK$NIl) at the balance sheet date.

REER - BARBEBEH MDA A SR TR EM S RHENERSEHEHEREREFRE - 2SVEREEBNREFES
BEEZ T (20084  BEEZ L) ©



12Property, plant and equipment (continued) #72¢ - = & a& & (4)
(d) The net book value of the office equipment and computer equipment held under finance leases of the Group was
HK$1,654,000 (2008: HK$1,879,000).

AEBUREHEFAERAELE N B RENERRFEAB1,654,0007T (20084 : #%1,879,0007T) °
(e) Major non-cash transactions 23R4 5

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of office equipments with a total capital
value at the inception of the lease of HK$411,000 (2008: HK$Nil).

RER  ARER - IRAZSM BT REREHR - HEABERZHEHREANBNER411,0007T(2008  BEZIT) -

=N/

13Interests in subsidiaries K& X i

The Company ZxA 7]

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200842 H29H

HK$’000 ## Tt HK$’000 j## 7t
]
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, at cost ELTRGHE - R 712,742 712,742
Due from subsidiaries FEURFTB A FIBR R 438,739 434,658
1,151,481 1,147,400
Less: Impairment loss 4 B REEE (643,746) (587,389)
507,735 560,011

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TRABIBAKENEE BEEXRBEEEAZENWBRAFE - RABEREIN  IFEANBRNEREER -

4 An impairment was recognised for interest in subsidiaries with a carrying amount of HK$920,097,000 (2008: HK$934,008,000) before deducting the
impairment loss because their recoverable amounts were less than the carrying amounts.

4 FEKEAR ARz AT E S DR EREE - O R E R AT 2 BREE7515920,097,000(20084F : ##5934,008,000) {EREETE ©



13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) /& A Al s (4)

Place of

establishment/
Name of incorporation
company and operation

BX3Z/ TS
UNCIEAE RSz

Particulars
of issued and
paid up capital

Group’s effective

ownership interest Principal activities

BRITREAR AEBNEREES
MRAGE B 28.2.2009 29.2.2008 FEERK

Beijing Qi Li Yun People’s Republic
Jewellery Company of China (“PRC”)
Limited #/** FEE ARSAAB([HE])

I RENEREER DA

Beijing Tse Sui PRC
Luen Jewellery )
Company Limited #/*

(“BTSL”)

IR HHBEAE AR AR

(TEmF3m e 1)

Concept Management Hong Kong
(H-K.) Limited 5
BIRER(FE)BRAR

Excellent Ford Hong Kong
Development &8
Limited (“EF”)

BHERAR DA
([fagiEER])

Guangzhou Hong PRC
Yun Jewellery H
Company Limited

(“GZ Xiang Yun”)#/**
BNBERERRAR
(TEMBE]) =

RMB1,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%° PRC jewellery retailing

AR #1,000,0007T RAEBREHRETE

US$2,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%® Jewellery manufacturing

2,000,000 7T and trading
KREERES

HK$1 100%@ 100%@ Trademarks holding

1T RHAEER

HK$10,000 80.46%° 80.46%° Jewellery trading

75%10,0007C HKREZ5H

RMB1,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%° PRC jewellery retailing

AE#1,000,0007T RABREHRETE



13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) BfE A Al (&)

Principal activities
TEER

Manufacturing and
distribution of jewellery
RERE R 5 8

PRC jewellery trading
RABERERELS

PRC Jewellery retailing
RABRERETE

PRC Jewellery trading
R EHREE

Goldsmith and jewellery
trading
ReMABEEH

Investment holding
Eba=Eeline

Place of
establishment/ Particulars
Name of incorporation of issued and Group’s effective
company and operation paid up capital ownership interest
[Davygsaiiiavs BETRER AEENER A RERER
NGEL e BAFE 28.2.2009 29.2.2008
-
Guangzhou Jingshi PRC HK$18,000,000 100%¢@ 100%®
Jewellery Company th 7518,000,0007T
Limited #/*
BMNEAARE SHERAF
Guangzhou Tai Yi PRC HK$8,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Trading Company H 751%8,000,0007T
Limited#/*
BMNREHEERAR*
Guangzhou Xi Yun PRC RMB2,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Jewellery Company th AR#2,000,0007T
Limited#/**
BMNEERERRAF
Guangzhou Xiang PRC RMB3,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%°
Yun Jewellery H AE#38,000,0007T
Company Limited
(“GZ Xiang Yun”)#/**
BMNEERERRAR
(TREMFEE )
Impromptus Asia Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%¢@ 100%®
Pacific Limited &S 75#10,0007T
Infinite Assets Corp. British Virgin Islands HK$277,254 80.46%"° 80.46%°
(“IAC”) (“BVI) 78 E277,2547T
REELHS

((RBEXES])



13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) /& A AlfE s (4)

Particulars

of issued and Group’s effective

paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEITRER REEMERAERR

eN=d 28.2.2009 29.2.2008 TEXH

Place of
establishment/
Name of incorporation
company and operation
BR3Z/ G AL
YNSIE RS2
Liberty Mark Limited BVI
RERUHS
Shanghai Fu Yun PRC
Jewellery Company h
Limited#/**

LSREREARAA"

Shenzhen Jingyan PRC
Jewellery Company th
Limited#/*

R AEFIAE B AR AR

TSL Investment BVI
(B.V.1.) Limited RBRIHS
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Hong Kong
Company Limited B
(“TSLJ")
WnEARE AR AR
([FHmBAE])
Tse Sui Luen Investment BVI
(China) Limited RBRIES
(“TSL China”)

AHERE (R ) AR AR
(R e )

US$1 100%@ 100%@ Investment holding
1% REER
RMB1,000,000 80.46%° 80.46%° PRC Jewellery retailing

AE#1,000,0007T RABREHRETE

HK$8,000,000 100%° 100%® Manufacturing and

/51%8,000,0007T distribution of jewellery
KRESLER D

HK$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding

75#1,0007T REPER

HK$34,000 100%® 100%@ Jewellery trading

75134,0007T KEES

US$6,863 80.46%° 80.46%° Investment holding

6,863% 7T REER



13Interests in subsidiaries (continued) & A A1z (4)

Particulars

of issued and Group’s effective

paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BEEITRER A& B BRI R

MRS 28.2.2009 29.2.2008 TEEH

Place of
establishment/
Name of incorporation
company and operation
P gaiiifoAva
yNSIE ReAg B
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery & Hong Kong/Malaysia
(Malaysia) Limited B/ BRAEE
HREIAE (SRER)BRAA
TSL Management Hong Kong
Services Limited B
(“TSL MS”)
B E R ARG AR A
(IR EE R
TSL Jewellery (Export) Hong Kong

Company Limited &5
(“TSL (Export)”)
HIHBIAE (D) BB AR

([HmE(he) 1)
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Macau
Limited bl

(“TSL (Macau)”’)
TSLERE (RPY) BRAR]
(FTSL(P) )

TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Hong Kong
Co. Limited &5
(“TSL (HK)")

HIREIAE (BB BRAA
([Hm 8% (BE) 1)

TSL Manufacturing and Hong Kong
Distribution Limited &5
(“TSL M&D”)

A EIE R D HA R A A
([ RE R 8 )

HK$3,000,000 100%@ 100%°@ Jewellery retailing
151#3,000,0007T KETE
HK$2 100%° 100%@ Management and
PSHE2TT Admin. Services
B RITH RS
HK$14,824,775 100%®@ 100%¢@ Jewellery export
751514,824,7757T KEHA
MOP100,000 100%@ 100%¢@ Jewellery retailing
JRF9%100,0007T in Macau
RRFRERETE
HK$490 100%¢@ 100%® Jewellery retailing
7S #£4907T KETE
HK$47,000,000 100%°@ 100%¢@ Procurement,
75#47,000,0007C manufacturing and

distribution of jewellery
BREE  SLER D HIRE



Place of

establishment/ Particulars
Name of incorporation of issued and Group’s effective
company and operation paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities

BR3Z/ G AL BEITRER REEMERAERR
AGIEL MR eN=d 28.2.2009 29.2.2008 TEXK
|
TSL Properties Management ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%°@ 100%°@ Property holding

Limited BE 75#1,0007T and investment

SRR EE AR A RENERKE

#  Unofficial translation
FEAXEEZ

*  Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise
BB EEET R AINERE

** Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company
BB EAEEMARREEAR

@ Indirectly held through subsidiaries
FRNBEARBERS

A Subsidiaries not audited by member firms of Moore Stephens International Limited
IEHBARLIEMFEERRERARKEER



14 Other asset EMEE

The Group 7" £ [#

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200842 H29H

HK$'000 54 Tt HK$'000 ;& Tt

|
Membership and seat in the Chinese Gold SIREE FI5eHE

and Silver Exchange Society, at cost K FERL IR R AR 500 500

15lnventories F&

The Group Z<&E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 2008F2H29H

HK$’000 & Tt HK$’000 & Tt
]
Raw materials — at net realisable value BEHE — IR A # IR E 82,491 162,356
Work in progress — at cost ERG — AR 22,385 85,517
Finished goods — at net realisable value BIRY 5 — 3 A] 38 5 H(E 655,885 617,721
760,761 865,594

As at 28 February 2009, the carry amount of inventories held by 6 subsidiaries (the “Subsidiaries”) amounted to
HK$384,905,000 (2008: HK$455,387,000) was pledged as a continuing security of the debts arising from the supply of
polished diamonds and precious stones by Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK”) to the Subsidiaries (the “Debts”)
from time to time (see also note 30(c) below).

200928288 * AXMWEARI([ZEMB AR NFEEZFEERERED FHEE - HERHE A5 384,905,000(20084F : /##5455,387,000
JC) ° YE/ARosy Blue Hong Kong Limited([ Rosy Blue HK ) NEFAZ S B AL EEREA A EEAMEE 2 EHE([ZEHE ) 2H5E
RE (IR 28 T X HI7E30(c)) °



16 Trade and other receivables [EUsBR =k K E ith & 3k
The Group &&£E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092 H28H 200852 H29H
HK$’000 ¥+t HK$’000 & Tt
]
Trade receivables FEURBE =k 110,910 127,350
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Hinprl s « 24 RIER K 67,294 45,208
178,204 172,558

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts W RIEIREHE (RE(c))
(note (c)) (15,703) (15,968)
162,501 156,590

(a2) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) with the
following ageing analysis:—

BB FE U BR 5% B L At FE LKL SR P A FE LA BR 3k (B HOBR RIRBR BB ) MO BR B D ATAA T -
The Group &&£E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 H28H 200842 H29H
HK$’000 &%+t HK$'000 # %+t
.- -~ - "
0 to 30 days 0£30K 76,088 73,170
31 to 60 days 31KE60K 5,513 21,299
61 to 90 days 61KXZE90K 3,071 2,525
Over 90 days HBEI0K 10,535 15,388
Total trade receivables JEUR AR R 4a % 95,207 112,382
Other receivables, deposits and HAb R
prepayments (note(e)) && RIERR(GE(e)) 67,294 44,208
162,501 156,590

Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit period from 30 to 90 days to other customers.

BEEERTIN  AEER THEMET I HI0EIORAIMRR -



16 Trade and other receivables (continued) J& Uk BR 7 K EH th & U zx (48)

(b) The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:—

RBAE R R EERE FRE AIRMEZ EURA Z BRI DT T

The Group Z&E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 2008F2H29H

HK$’000 & Tt HK$’000 & Tt
|
Neither past due nor impaired Ris BT ARAERME 84,504 99,709
Less than 6 months past due wH DA 61E A 9,807 11,995
Over 6 months past due 160 B R 68 A 896 678
95,207 112,382

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience the directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balance
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over those
balances.

The directors consider that trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.
I g B SR E < FE W AR R EUA AN MR N Resk c AR S B -

ERRERRREZBUERERAEENRTHERF2ETBELEFPAR - REBELR  EFRAEENZFRFIELRMERE -
WTRENMEEE R BELEARE) - MABSRTRE AR BERE - AEBEW B ZFERTE TR EMEEIEE

=R BUREEMEBUGRERAAERE -



16 Trade and other receivables (continued) & 1 57 Kz H fth fE UK (42)
(c) Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as follows:—

FARERBH 2 EHOT :
The Group 7K&

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 H28H 20082 H29H
HK$'000 &% Tt HK$'000 54 Tt
|
1 March 3A1H 15,968 15,271

Allowance for bad and RIEER (D), B
doubtful debts (reversed)/recognised (265) 697
28 February/29 February 2H28H8 2H29H 15,703 15,968

(d) Details of trade and other receivables denominated in different currencies are as follows:—

UANREREEHEZ AR R B A YGRS

The Group &£ E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200842 H29H

HK$'000 ##F ¢ HK$'000 ##F 7t
]
Hong Kong dollars B 48,878 36,736
Chinese Renminbi AR 90,275 96,225
United States dollars E5T 22,198 22,965
Others Hith 1,150 664
162,501 156,590



16 Trade and other receivables (continued) & 1 i 51 K H fth fE UK ()
(e) Details of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are as follows:—

HA MR ~ e RIBMFEAMAMNT

The Group "&£ E The Company A2 &
28.2.2009 29.2.2008 28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092 H28H 200828290 200942 H28H 200842 729H
HK$'000 &%+ HK$000 #H#Fr HK$000 BT HKE000 HEFT

Others receivables H bR 14,724 9,493 - -
Deposits e 39,898 23,583 1 1
Prepayment SECNE:N 12,672 11,132 1,136 229

67,294 44,208 1,137 230

17 Cash at bank and in hand E17FEZ MRS

Details of cash at bank and in hand denominated in different currencies are as follows:—
ATRIEEPEZRITFEARSIRESFHFBUOT © —

The Group 7 E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

20092 H28H 2008F2H29H

HK$'000 &%+t HK$’000 ##T 7t
]
Hong Kong dollars Pt 18,706 2,429
Chinese Renminbi ARHE 104,063 70,831
Malaysian Ringgits 0 S 3,825 4,560
United States dollars ET 232 953
Others Hih 295 225
127,121 78,998

The conversion of the Chinese Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

ARG R INE Z A BIBUT PR EINER SR 0 RORRIPTEE -



18 Trade and other payables F& R & H & 5%

(a) Included in trade and other payables are trade payables with the following ageing analysis:—

BRENEMNRR M EAMEN KA BRI REDITAT

The Group &£ F

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200842 H29H

HK$'000 i## Tt HK$’000 & Tt
|
0 to 30 days 0£30K 44,130 33,579
31 to 60 days 31RE60K 24,523 52,392
61 to 90 days 61RAZE90K 23,126 45,808
Over 90 days HBiBI0K 84,165 220,298
Total trade payables JESBRFR/a%E 175,944 352,077
Other payables and accruals (note (c)) Hib AR R ERT 2R (M) 215,821 172,263
391,765 524,340

The directors consider that trade and other payables approximate their fair values.

E=RR BARALEMEMNRERQAERE -



18 Trade and other payables (continued) J& 1R 5k Ko EL &£ 5% (4%)

(b) Details of trade and other payables denominated in different currencies are as follows:—

AT RE R EHE Z S ARk e B A FE A SRARAR I T

The Group 7 E

28.2.2009
200942 B 28H
HK$’000 /%% F 7t

29.2.2008
200842 H29H
HK$'000 ;&% Tt

Hong Kong dollars bt 137,272 155,289
Chinese Renminbi ARHE 111,990 119,438
United States dollars e 139,683 241,767
Others Hith 2,820 7,846

391,765 524,340

(c) Details of other payables and accruals are as follows:—

HAit MR BT & AN T:

The Group "&£ E The Company A2 &
28.2.2009 29.2.2008 28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092 H28H 200828290 200992 H28H 200842 729H
HK$'000 &%+ HK$000 #H#Fr HK$000 BT HKE000 HEFT

Other payables H TR 82,458 74,126 - -
Customer deposits BRLE 8,317 13,431 - -
Provision for liabilities B ER 24,214 19,471 - -
Accruals EETER 100,832 65,235 5,131 5,346

215,821 172,263 5,131 5,346



19Bank loans and overdrafts — secured RITEFLEZ —HET
At 28 February 2009, the secured bank loans were repayable as follows:

1K200952H28H - HEMIRITERAEZTHLT : —
The Group &£ E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200852 H29H

HK$’000 & Tt HK$'000 i Tt
-
Within 1 year or on demand 1FERHIRER 74,374 73,797
After 1 year but within 2 years 1% B2FER 12,640 19,680
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F1%{A5F A = 12,640
12,640 32,320

87,014 106,117

Details of the securities for the bank loans and overdrafts are set out in note 30(a) to (b) to the financial statements.
RITER KB 2 BRFEH N M RKMEE30(@) Z(b)
200Other loan — secured Hih&E5H—HFHEA
At 28 February 2009, the other loan was repayable as follows:
7200952280 - EtERAERBMOT « —
The Group &&£H

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200842 H29H

HK$'000 &% Tt HK$'000 58 Tt
-
Within 1 year 15 R 14,552 14,552
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&E2ER 6,962 14,552
After 2 years but within 5 years 2B B5FN - 6,962
6,962 21,514

21,514 36,066

Other loan includes secured loan from Partner Logistics Limited which carries interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offering
Rate plus 2% per annum. Details of the securities for other loan from Partner Logistics Limited are set out in note 30(a) to (b)
to the financial statements.

E A E B 1EPartner Logistics LimitedZ BHIFE K - hEFREBRITRIZERENN2ESTE ° HPartner Logistics Limitedfs T2 &b E 5k
IR B R B S R 3E30(a) £ (b) ©



21 Other loan — unsecured Hfth &5 —fEiKHA
At 28 February 2009, the other loan was repayable as follow:

12009F2H28H » HMEREERFTMAT
The Group and the Company

REE AR A]
28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 H28H 200842 H29H
HK$'000 & Tt HK$'000 j&# Tt
- - -~ - -
Within 1 year 1FR 311 1,782
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 BE2ER = 312
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F1Z{H5ER - -
= 312
311 2,094

Other loan represents an unsecured loan from a third party which carries interest at a flat rate of 8.39% per annum and is
repayable by 36 equal instalments of HK$157,374 each (inclusive of interest).

HERIERBE=7 2 BIERER - DEFKRE—FE8.39E 5 - WAHICHAEFHER157 374 (RIEFB)EE -

220bligations under finance leases Fi&H&#E
The Group leases an office equipment and computer equipment under finance leases expiring in five years and one year,
respectively (note 12(d)). At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the assets at a price deemed
to be a bargain purchase option. None of the leases included contingent rentals.

At 28 February 2009, the Group and the Company had obligations under finance leases repayable as follows:
(a) The Group Z&&£ME

AEEDRFEENAFRI Mz BEHEEARREREL - FASH B EHEHERERRE (HE12(d) - REERTHER - K
EERNESERBABENEE - SREREHTESHEEE

20092 A28H @ ANEE KRR RIMEEHERE NERBHWMT : —

i

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092284 200842 A29A

Present Interest Present Interest
value of the expense Total value of the expense Total
minimum relating minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
RERE B1& 5 KERE RIEHE H % ] REHS
FIHERE RIS (NEGEE IRERE R S5 FTHEEH
HK$'000 % F7x HK$'000 5% Tz HK$'000 54Tz HK$000 54T HK$000 5% T HK$O000 58T 7t
|
Within 1 year 1ER 173 - 173 865 44 909
After 1 year but within 2 years 1ERE2FR 98 - 98 85 - 85
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F(RIBSER 210 - 210 4 - 4
308 - 308 126 - 126
481 - 481 991 44 1,035



220bligations under finance leases (continued) & &FHE (4)
(b) The Company 72 ]

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200952 H28H 200852 A29H

Present Interest Present Interest
value of the expense Total value of the expense Total
minimum relating Minimum minimum relating minimum
lease to future lease lease to future lease
payments periods payments payments periods payments
RIEHE Hi&HArE REHE HERE B & 25 RIEHE
RERE RIS (NFEEECE LA MRS RpiSEEEE

HK$'000 %+ HK§000 %%+ HKE000 #T7r HK$000 #%F 7w HK$'000 5T HK$000 3% T

Within 1 year 1ER 62 = 62 841 44 885
After 1 year but within 2 years 1% R2ER = = - 62 - 62
After 2 years but within 5 years s Yl = = = = = =
- - - 62 - 62

62 - 62 903 44 947

23Employee benefit obligations & &&@FI&#%

(a) Long service payments EHifRi%E

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five years of service with

the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid out from the
Group’s cash in hand when such payments are required.

The latest actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group’s employees were completed by a qualified actuary,
Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited, as at 28 February 2009 using the projected unit credit method.

REBEEZB(ERBIED)  WRAEEESETHEATE LEAEASBERBESAFNRLET - FAUNBSRENTARELE T K
HR%E - BENORARS S SERE THRKFSMRBFITE - WHIBR FIE AR ERAG 8 RIEEDT B A REEROE
7o AREWEBREMNEENINESNRB SR - ERF2FLNRE - RERFEIAAEEZRE AT

RAEBREREMRVSOMBEMED B ERIBFEMEETNERBR A RN2009F2 A28 AR MR BN ERIETK
(i) The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

EfRa BER BREROBENT | —

The Group K&

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 A28H 20082 H29H
HK$’000 j&# T HK$’000 /% F 7t

Present value of defined benefit obligations 42| & S8R E 22,323 17,671



23Employee benefit obligations (continued) {& & 1& |3 75 (4)
(a) Long service payments (continued) EEIARH < (%)
(i) Movements in the net liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

ERAEERBERERNARFELSNT : —

The Group Z&E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200952 H28H 200852 H29H

HK$’000 % Tt HK$’000 j##F 7t

__________________________________________________________________________________________

At beginning of the year FHRREE 17,671 10,836
Expense recognised in the consolidated e laERERN

income statement (note 4(b)) (HfsE4(b)) 4,652 6,835

At end of the year ERBEE 22,323 17,671

(iii) Expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is as follows:

AR A W RERH ST = —

The Group Z&R&E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 H28H 200842 A29H

HK$’000 ## ¢ HK$’000 j##+ 7t

'

Current service cost IREE PRFE A AN 861 143

Interest cost FAIS=4E] 528 457

Net actuarial losses recognised RIS e R 3,730 6,235
Long service payment benefit made MpeEeS 2

net of MPF benefits FRBIRAE S T (467) -

4,652 6,835



23Employee benefit obligations (continued) {& & 183 75 (4)
(a) Long service payments (continued) &HifR#E (48)
(iv)The expense is recognised in the following line items in the consolidated income statement:

BE A M AaKamRAE NER - —

The Group &£ E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 A28H 2008%2 H29H

HK$'000 ##F ¢ HK$'000 # 8+ 71
'
Cost of sales SHERK AN 542 950
Selling expenses HEBH 3,234 4,734
Administrative expenses 1THE R 876 1,151
4,652 6,835

(v) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 28 February 2009 (expressed as weighted average) are as follows:

K200942 A28 H{F M ERERR (CAIIEFHHER)WOT @ —

The Group &&£E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 A28H 200842 H29H

HK$’000 ## Tt HK$’000 ##F ¢

1

Discount rate il TS 2% 3%
Future salary increases RIRF & THE

Year 2008 20084 — 5%

Year 2009 20094F — 5%

Year 2010 and thereafter 2010 R E 1% 4% 5%

Return of MPF balances RIE S AEFREI TR 4% 4%



23Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(b) Defined contribution retirement plan
The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits schemes for all qualifying employees in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated income statement during the year ended
28 February 2009 amounted to HK$5,050,000 representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the
appropriate rates set by the local government of the subsidiaries.

23 EERANEB ()
(b) AEHFEEIRETE
AEEZRBEBCGR G ABEREERDIEE - AREEEEREIDEAMNES - 2HEBFHIMHAE2FE([RESETE]) - BES
FEIR—EREHRFEBARGTE - HBEYNZEATE - REBERERE - EEXANEBSHARRBEEEBASRS%AGT SIELHR - 8
T AMMEEA R LR &4E%20,0007T °

AEETRBAETREARKNE ([HE]) REHRAETAERNEE2EEFEHRFERNRAS - FENEEBINARENEEL HBE
UEEARBBERERE -

REE2009F2H28H |LFE - AEBE AL F5TSIPT1E 2 B #3278 %5,050,0007T @ I 2 AEAE WamRPHI o AT AKER
E B PR RE M R @ A O L R ARG -



24Current tax (recoverable)/payable (FJUklEl) /fEfH AT E

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents

BEBBRATAHHES  —
The Group &£ E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 A28H 200842 A29H

HK$’000 #&# -+t HK$’000 ##F 7t

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year &REEEBF15H 34 5,051 6,599

Provisional Profits Tax paid B EANEH (2,059) (1,253)

2,992 5,346

Overseas taxation BN IE 9,476 16,354

Profits tax provision relating to prior years EEE RS REE 66,595 75,130

79,063 96,830

'
Representing:— 0%

Current tax recoverable AT YR B8 (116) (44)

Current tax payable AHAFE(SFL IR 79,179 96,874

79,063 96,830

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised E#RIELFBEEME &
The Group ##/#
The components of deferred (assets)/liabilities recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and movements during the
year are as follows:—

ERAAERFREROBENA(AE) AEREAHEHNT : -

Depreciation Withholding Tax
in excess Employee Provision on undistributed
of depreciation benefit for Tax profits of
allowances obligations inventories losses subsidiaries Total
BiRnE WEARRA &
RRENTE ERRETIES e WEER  2NNEDHREHR ks
HK$'000 % T HK$000 #%Fr HKE'000 ##Fr HKS'000 %+ HKS000 T HK$'000 %% F T
Deferred tax arising EERE
From:- RE :
1 March 2007 7200743A1H (7,470) (1,896) (11,115) (4,560) - (25,041)
(Credited)/charged to e lER
consolidated income statement (5t N)/F% 2,018 (1,019) 7,136 (742) - 7,393
Exchange difference [ A (256) - (150) (52) - (458)
29 February 2008 72008527290 &
and 1 March 2008 200853 /1H (5,708) (2,915) (4,129) (5,354) - (18,106)
(Credited)/charged to ERadER
consolidated income statement (3t A)/5lI% (1,283) (768) (1,043) (4,995) 6,466 (1,628)
Exchange difference XA (127) = (101) = 110 (118)
28 February 2009 14200942 A28H (7,118) (3,683) (5,273) (10,349) 6,576 (19,847)



24Current tax (recoverable)/payable (continued) (FJYzIEl),F& {2 BAFE 18 (48)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) EERIEERIEE EM & (& ()
The Group (continued) ZX£/2(#)

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 A28H 200842 A29H
HK$'000 ##F 7t HK$’000 j## 7t
Net deferred tax asset recognised on EiReBEBBERERD
the consolidated balance sheet ERERIREEFE (26,732) (18,883)
Net deferred tax liability recognised on iR A BERBERERN
the consolidated balance sheet ERERBERESE 6,885 T
(19,847) (18,106)

The Company ZX2\7]
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the Company’s balance sheet and movements during the year are
as follow:—

EARTAEREXRROETHEAERERNSDNT :

Tax losses
FHIEEE
HK$'000 ##F 7t

Deferred tax arising from— REFIERE :

1 March 2008 20083 A1H (2,602)
Debited to Company’s income statement EARRWERETA 1,990
28 February 2009 #2009%2 A28 H (612)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group’s subsidiaries established in PRC, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

BREBEFBEEEMSTE - RPEARKMBEKZ 2IMEHREDEMIINEREET RS AR10%HKTERR - WRER —_TTN\F—A
—HEAR - WEAR-—ZETEF T _A=1t—REZ8N - WPREENBEREE 2 ADERR BRI ERERS % - AIFRRREIER
Ko AAEERPFEARAMBEKZZMBRRAME - BATER[/% - Bt - AEEEEERZEMBRARIN _TT/\F—H—Hi
EE NPT DK Z BB TRIRE o



24Current tax (recoverable)/payable (continued) (FJUzIE]),F& {2 BAFE 18 (48)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised RFERHIELTEE &
The components of unrecognised deferred tax (assets)/liabilities at the balance sheet date are as follows:—

REEE A 2 RERHRERIR(BE) REHSNT © —

The Group <& E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 H28H 200852 H29H
HK$’000 &%+t HK$’000 & Tt
Depreciation allowances in HRBEREITER
Excess of related depreciation HERLRE (8) (550)
Tax losses BiIEER (1,658) (6,580)
Net deferred tax assets not recognised KRR CH B EEFE (1,666) (7,130)

The net deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the financial statements as they have arisen in subsidiaries that

have been loss-making or dormant

for some time.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit would increase by HK$1,666,000.
B ERBEERIEEEFEREE THRALRBGEXEEXB I MWB AR - Bt AREEW RN BRI AT IARR
AR BB IE AT B R R IR E T & EE TRR - B FE N #51,666,0007T ©

25Share capital &7

(a) Authorised and issued share capital JATE & B 217 A

28.2.2009 29.2.2008
200942 A28 H 20082 H29H
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
avE ] i) &8 B £%8
’000 HK$’000 000 HK$’000
]
Authorised: SERE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each TR EES .25 T L EAR 1,500,000 375,000 1,500,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
Ordinary shares B
At beginning of the year FEEL%ER 207,063 51,766 207,063 51,766
Share options exercised AR T 1,750 437 - -
At end of the year FEREARE 208,813 52,203 207,063 51,766

1,750,000 shares of HK$0.25 each

were issued for cash at a consideration price of HK$1.76 per share pursuant to the

exercise of the Company’s share option for a total consideration before expenses, of HK$3,080,000.
RIBITHEARR ZERE - USRAEEE1.76 T 2 K {E3171,750,0000% + FE®0.25 T2 %%  EARINKBERAR - BREABE

3,080,0007T °



25Share capital (continued)
(b) Management of capital
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group has been imposed

a capital requirement from the financial and bank creditors that the Group’s equity to total assets ratio (consolidated
tangible net worth plus minority interest divided by total tangible assets) is not less than 30%. As of 28 February 2009
and 29 February 2008, the Group has complied with this capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 28 February 2009 and 29 February 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to equity ratio, which is total borrowings divided by total equity of the Group.
The Group’s policy is to maintain the debt to equity ratio not greater than 100%.

25 A& AN (&)
(b) EAXREIR
REFNEAETEEEREARBEAEBEFELSLETRIFRIFNERLE » AT EBEEELIEARREE -

AREFEBREEREE  PREBELERRNES NHBEERR ZISFEHEERARE - B AREREE  AEETEFHRRKE
IR Z RS ~ REIEAR TR EEITHR - NEBMOEREEARBTRTHAERENEARNRTE @ Bit - AEEZERHBEEL
R(GEBEESEMVEBIEER  BRIABEEAE)BEEER|30% ° 2200942 A28 H 200842 F29H @ AEE A & AR
TE o IREE2009%2 A28 H &2008F2H29H IFFE ' AEBMEIZ - BURSEEHEEL -
AEEFNAEBELRERER IAEENBEERAERATE - AEBZBRDEFEELETZ1K100% ©

The Group &&E

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 A28H 200842 A29H

HK$'000 &%+t HK$'000 # Tt
|
Total equity Ly 580,416 448,250
Total borrowings BEE 131,788 171,072

Debt to equity ratio BELL =R 23% 38%



26Reserves f#f#
The Company &4 7]

Share-based

Share Contributed ~ compensation Retained Proposed
premium surplus reserve profits final dividend Total
Rina(E B4z RiAwERE RERA RERERE st

HK§'000 % Tt HK$'000 %+ HKS000 ## T HK$'000 %+ HKE000 58T HKS000 #%F7T
|

1 March 2007 7200743A1H 116,634 14,770 4,154 21,718 - 157,276
Share option expenses ERIER Y - - 333 - - 333
Lapse of share options BRI = = (231) 231 - -
Proposed final dividend RERERE = = - (2,088) 2,088 -
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - 350,763 - 350,763
29 February 2008 122008527290

and 1 March 2008 K2008%341H 116,634 14,770 4,256 370,624 2,088 508,372
Lapse of share options BRELR = - (1,339) 1,339 - -
Share options exercised BRI TE 3,599 - (956) - - 2,643
Dividends paid ERRE - - - (4,176) (2,088) (6,264)
Proposed final dividend RERERE = = - (6,264) 6,264 -
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (48,278) - (48,278)
28 February 2009 12200952728 H 120,233 14,770 1,961 313,245 6,264 456,473



26 Reserves (continued)

The Company (continued)

(a) The contributed surplus of the Company arose from the difference between the consolidated net assets of the Group’s
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation at the date on which the reorganisation became effective, and
the nominal amount of the Company’s ordinary shares issued under the reorganisation; less the set-off the accumulated
losses of the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as at 29 February 2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if:i—

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

(b) The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the Company at 28 February 2009 was
HK$456,473,000 (2008: HK$508,372,000).

26 it (&)
ARE(E)
(@) AR BHBRNELBSENBARNEELERERNREESARKBER G EEFEEAEEARTZARAERAREE L ZE
B ORIRE—IHEAER - AR FIN200452 29 B REUE 865,747,000 T8 Rt B IR HEEHEE -

BREBEBFE19BIFRADE(RER]) ARFZEFBRERADIRTERER - BETIBERT - ARATEREHEMRRRIBIET KK
BNREZA  DREMELR  —

(i) EENREE  ARATEIBTEANBMEE X
(i) AAREEMNAZREERMERERE  ERTRAMBMEERZAM -

(b) $2009F2 8288 + A] Ik T A2 AIARER 2 (18 A5 456,473,0007T (20084 : ##508,372,0007T) ©



27Commitments # &
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 28 February 2009 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

R20095F2 /28R » RIEMNMAEMBMERNIREEBNEARAZNT - —

The Group &R&E The Company &2 7]
28.2.2009 29.2.2008 28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092H28H  2008F2H29H  200942H28H  20084F2H29H
HK$'000 5% HK$000 &% Fr HK$000 ##Fr  HKE000 7% T

Contracted for EHES - 2,690 -

(b) At 28 February 2009, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

1200952 H28H @ IREBETAIMGRNKLEHER B RENNREHENKEEZNT : —

The Group &R&E The Company &2 7]
28.2.2009 29.2.2008 28.2.2009 29.2.2008
20092H28H  2008F2H29H  200942H28H  2008F2H29H
HK$'000 5% HK$000 &% Fr HK$000 ##Fr  HKE000 7% T

Within 1 year 1ER 57,484 53,400 3,439 7,800
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBESFER 70,925 53,209 - 3,439
128,409 106,609 3,439 11,239

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
three years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted to
reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of the terms of the lease.

AEBENGEHERRAOME - BLHE-RUPRP—FE=F  VYAFEEREIHNAREY ERMAGIHEIENEE - #
ENFERARENEREAGTERE - URBRMIZHEE -



28Share options
As disclosed under the heading of Share Option Scheme, 8,825,000 options were granted in 2005 to the directors,
employees and service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme. 20%
options granted are exercisable from 22 August 2005. The next 40% options granted are exercisable from 18 months from
the date of grant and the remaining 40% options granted are exercisable from 24 months from the date of grant.

The fair value of options granted, was determined by using the Binomial valuation model. The significant inputs into the
model were share price of $1.71 at the grant date, exercise price of $1.76, expected volatility of the Company’s share price:
60% p.a., expected life of options of 4 years, expected nil dividend, annual risk-free interest rate of 3.38% p.a., rate of
leaving service of 15% p.a. and assume option holders will exercise their options when the share price is at least 180% of
the exercise price. The fair value of options granted is as follows:—

28 B
SANBERR ST Bl — ERFTIR R - ANA TR IE2003 4 B AR S8 - 1520054 £15% 118,825,000/ EERE T AATIREMB AT 2 EE - S KRR
PR o ELrR20% D 15 A0 S ARAE AT 12005458 A 22 A BT + SBIM0% D 13 H HO B ARHE A 570 13 1 B BB ST 1818 B 1A 1T4E - 8 T40% D 1%
OB AR B BT AR ) B AR S 24 (E A 18 1T74E o

EREHNBRENAAER BN HEEERAFE - LR ARENEIZHEE/ER L BMOREEE1.717T - TEELEK1.76
7T ARFREZ ERKIESF60% « BARENEMFRIF FBMTRE - BEARFENZK3.38% - FFHBLL T15% - WRRBRESE
ABRIRBETEERD180%EFTRBAME - DRENBREOAARERT : —

Fair value No. of vested

per option options granted
Exercise period BRI R
171 EA BHBOENAAE HEARER B
-
22 August 2005 — 25 July 2009 200548 A22H-200947 A25H $0.56 #&#0.567T 1,765,000
25 January 2007 — 25 July 2009 200741 A25H-200947 A25H $0.69 #&#0.697T 3,530,000
25 July 2007 — 25 July 2009 200747 H258-200947H25H $0.73 j810.737C 3,530,000

Given the above assumptions and the inherent limitations of the Binomial valuation model, shareholders and other investors
are hereby warned of the subjectivity and uncertainty of the aforementioned values of the options.

RN B RR R B HEEEEAZBARY  AARBELRESERMEMKREE - DUBREEEAE T - MAMNUER -



28Share options (continued) fER&#E (%)
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:—

BRE 2 BB R TITEEW T - —

2009 2008
20095 20085
Weighted Weighted

average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise price of options

IFEF g INEEF R

1128 #H 17218 #H

|
Outstanding at the beginning ERITE

of the year HK$1.76 j##1.767T 7,787,500  HK$1.76 #%#1.767C 8,112,500

Exercised during the year FRNTE HK$1.76 j8#1.767T (1,750,000) - -

Lapsed during the year RS HK$1.76 j&#1.76 7T (2,450,000) HK$1.76 j&#1.767T (825,000)

Outstanding at the end of the year FERRITE HK$1.76 j8#1.767T 3,587,500  HK$1.76 #1767 7,787,500

Exercisable at the end of the year FRAITE HK$1.76 j8#1.767T 3,587,500  HK$1.76 #1767 7,787,500

The options outstanding at 28 February 2009 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.4 years (2008: 1.4
years). The details of exercise price are set out in the Report of the Directors.

No weighted average share price at date of exercise is shown as the Company’s ordinary shares were under suspension of
trading in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

7R2009F2 H28 H ik A1 T8 2 BEAAE 2 I FH TSR & I F B 20.45 (200845 : 1.4F) c 1T EZHBHREFTZRENR °

HRARRZ EBERNEEHMAERZMERAR LEEFEE - SR ITE BRI ENETIIRERZS

29Contingent liabilities
(a) At 28 February 2009, the Company has issued guarantees to banks and financial creditors in respect of general banking
and other credit facilities extended to certain subsidiaries of the Company amounting to HK$134,649,000 (2008:
HK$172,029,000).

29 EFEE
(a) A2009F2H28H * ANARIEIBIT RIS ERAL FEOMB AR —MRIBITAEMERBEREE @ MRTMYEERAELS LB
134,649,0007C (20084 : 7%&#172,029,0007T ) HIHELR °



29Contingent liabilities (continued)
(b) As set out in the announcements of the Company dated 3 June 2008, two directors of the Company, and a controller
of showroom operation of a subsidiary and a consultant to a subsidiary were convicted by the District Court of Hong
Kong of various charges involving offences under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the Crime Ordinance and the
Theft Ordinance. The Company has been informed that the two directors who have been convicted have commenced
proceedings to appeal the verdict (“the Appeal”).

Under the Company’s Bye-Laws, the Company may be required to indemnify its directors from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur in execution of their duty, provided
that such indemnity shall not be extended to any matter in respect of, among other things, fraud and dishonesty.

The Directors are of the view that they are not in a position to conclude that whether and/or to what extent the Company
may be required to indemnify the two directors involved in relation to the Appeal.

(c) As at the balance sheet date, the disputes of certain subsidiaries with Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) regarding
the tax treatment of certain offshore income and agents commission payments and promoter fees for prior years are
still undetermined. During the year, a subsidiary received additional assessment and proposed adjustments in relation
to the dispute on the tax treatment of agent commission payments and promoter fees for prior years. The Group has
established a total provision of approximately HK$94 million for all the additional assessments issued and proposed by
IRD in respect of such disputes. In the event that the Group is not successful in defending the tax treatments adopted,
the Group may be subject to significant additional tax liabilities and possibly penalties which, under the provisions of the
current tax legislation, may be up to three times any tax under-reported as assessed by the IRD. Furthermore, the verdict
of the District Court of Hong Kong as mentioned in (b) above may or may not have impact on the IRD’s challenges on
the tax treatments adopted by the Group relating to agents commission payments and promoter fees arising in prior
years. The directors consider that it is impractical to estimate the potential amount of additional tax liabilities arising if the
IRD’s challenge in respect of the offshore income, agent commission payments and promoter fees is successful.

29 B EBEE)
(b) SANARFIN2008F6 A3 Z AHFH - AATIMAESUR—FMBATIRIIZERE Y TE R —2EMEESE S ERRTEILH
IFBEERAEG] ~ T RATIRGI A BRIGHIR ZEIER - AARDEEIMAETRENESORERIEE F5F( E5F]) -

BREBEARBZABMA - AARARAREEETRABTRBMEE ZAARA KA - X~ 1BK - BERAXARELREE S EMR
ALEERBE - HEAFBEL N ERE (AR ER)BFERTHETR °

BEEZRR - REREURERTEAY R LFZMBEREHRER AR RELREZ REEHER

(c) BEHAEER ETHBLAREZERBR (MR DRAEFENE TEHRFRARKRIEME S BEBHEREEBRANBRIENEZ
FEMAGHER - RFER - —KNBRAMAEFEZRBEMS L RERKEEER 2 MR A2 TR M2
B AEBECRABFRSRIAA ARG RE L MiEE 2 BN EL #78%94,000,0007T 2 B © MK ERBERL AT SR AT 5 e 12
TERI F - NEBREAERRIMIFEE - AR BEAERRER - RIFRVITHE - XA E L ERKE R AEMAIRRHE L= - it
S R EX(b) BT BB RIEAR < HORAIEEHHE RN AREBBAEFEREME T h BXBHERE R RANBSREETAZE
REATE - EERA - WHRBRAAKREERNAEFERFEA - AEMAEXHBAXGHEEERMRARTREENAZEREER &
HATEL 2 BEBIMIGR AL TIER T °



30Pledge of assets

(a) At 28 February 2009, debentures were executed by the Group in favour of its bankers and financial creditors charging,
by way of fixed and floating charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of the Company and of its 12
subsidiaries as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the

Group to the bankers and financial creditors. Rental revenue of the Group is also charged in favour of the Group’s
bankers.

(b) At 28 February 2009, the Group pledged all rights, titles and interests in 80.46% of the entire share capital of IAC and
TSL China and all benefits accruing to the pledged equity interest to the Group’s bankers and financial creditors as

security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to the
bankers and financial creditors.

(c) On 27 September 2007, the Company and the Subsidiaries executed a second floating charge and the Company made
a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there is a cross guarantee among the Subsidiaries in favour of Rosy Blue HK to
pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to and title and interest from time to time in their inventories or stock-
in-trade and their receivables from their overseas fellow subsidiaries in connection with the sales and supply of any
inventory or stock-in-trade to such overseas fellow subsidiaries as a continuing security for the Debts. As at 28 February
2009, the Debts amounted to HK$70,430,000 (2008: HK$110,189,000).

30 EEHRH

(a) R20099F2A28H - NEBERIEHEE - AEE SFBERTBAR R RE12EMB AR AR - MEREEER T EERRT
RUBEEA - WMER(EFEFE) ARETRERERRITMUBERAZABEERIHBERBERER 2ER M - NAEBENBSWATR
BEHEM T ARERERIRTT

(b) 720092 H 281 + A& EILE M Infinite Assets Corp. & IR & () B R AR B E NEER80.46% 2 — IR « FTEEMIER * &
B IFARANE IS T R — DRI IR T AREB A E KRBT RIS EREA - MER(ER ) AEBTRARFRBITRVBEEAZ

BB E R ERER 2 A M -

(c) M200759A27R » ARBRZEWMBRRFILE FBEMRARARAZEMBARELER - MaEMBAR BTG IER
Dz ENBARS B TRREEZFERFEFEULRERERAKEGINE RN B R RIHE MR EAFEFIHTE 2 EKZ
FGINRRMBRRIFIAZ AR - FrE#E RS T Rosy Blue HK » IAERZIEIR Z FHEE M - 12009F2H28H » %EER
75 #570,430,0007T(2008 : j£%110,189,000) °



31 Connected and related party transactions
(a) Partner Logistics Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Tommy Tse”), a substantial shareholder
and the spouse of a director of the Company, acquired all the rights, title and interests in the indebtedness due to certain
of the bank lenders by the Group amounting to HK$195,731,000 and HK$14,000,000 on 11 February 2004 and 2 April
2004 respectively.

At 28 February 2009, the outstanding loans due to Partner Logistics Limited amounted to HK$21,514,000 (2008:
HK$36,066,000) are secured and interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate plus 2% per annum. During the
year ended 28 February 2009, interest expenses paid to Partner Logistics Limited amounted to HK$1,155,000 (2008:
HK$2,991,000).

The transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transaction has been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The Company confirmed that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Following the expiry of the consultancy agreement for the provision of consultancy services entered into between TSLJ
and Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse”) on 31 January 2008, TSL MS has entered into a new consultancy agreement on 6
February 2008 with Mr. Tse. Mr. Tse is the father of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the substantial shareholder and the
spouse of a director of the Company. During the year ended 28 February 2009, consultancy fee of totalling HK$288,000
(2008: HK$2,480,000) and share-based payment of HK$Nil (2008: HK$6,000) were paid to Mr. Tse.

The transaction constituted a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transaction has been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The Company confirmed that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

31 EENEBALTRRS
(a) Partner Logistics Limited( —fRIAN AT = ZREFR —FF 2 0E « HEE L AR A F)HR20045F2 511 H %200454 A2 D RIFEA
RNEBEEEE R LB RIRI TR B 195,731,000t &% 814,000,000 T BRSO FTAREF) « AT EMER o

722009925280 * {5/X Partner Logistics Limited#) & 75 #21,514,0007T (20084 : 7#%36,066,0007T) A8 Hif Kk BF L EBIRITH
EIRBN2EEL B - HZE2009F2H28H |EFE © B HPartner Logistics Limited sz {<75%1,155,0007T (20084 : /&#2,991,0007T ) 2 F)
B -

ZRHBRIE LTRRNFV1AAZFIEBK —BHERER S - ARRIZBYFRTEFEERAHBERER G RER - ZEXHBARLF
MBEBERER > ZEXHRR—ROBBERETRZERZERBEAIZNHRIERET  MRXBERAFEE  LATEARRK
REVERNE - ARAFHERD NS EMRAF4ATHRERTE -

(b) 50 Tm Bk TR B B T B 51 A2 ([ &1 o5 AE |) B RE TR A R S AR 7% < BE RS 3% 7220085 1 31 H w12  ifiln B B IR AR E 12200842 A 6 H £
AR — D F RN % - A EEBEARREEMRENARNR] —BE2HE @ FEBLEZRE - REIE2009F2 A28H IFFERA -
2 [ £ B B A T8 1288,0007T (20084 : #%52,480,0007T ) A E B HEZ 7T (20084 : 7A%6,0007T) °
ZRXGIBE L TRAF4AZIEEK —BEERERS - AR A ZBYINTESCEZXFERER I NER  ZERXFHBEARNF]
A EER  ZERXZER—BOEEETETRZER HERBEEERZNRIEEETT MRSERAFEE @ WEFEARRRRK
RAEEFZ - AAREREMES LMRBIF14AZENEERE -



31 Connected and related party transactions (continued)
(c) During the year ended 28 February 2009, TSL M&D, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and finished
goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$131,718,000 (2008: HK$285,591,000) and sold raw materials to Rosy Blue
HK amounting to HK$5,000. At 28 February 2009, the amount due to Rosy Blue HK by TSL M&D was HK$70,062,000
(2008: HK$109,273,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2009, TSL(Macau), a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$150,000 (2008: HK$NIil).

During the year ended 28 February 2009, TSL(HK), a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and finished
goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$6,411,000 (2008: HK$Nil). At 28 February 2009, the amount due to Rosy
Blue HK by TSL(HK) was HK$368,000 (2008: HK$Nil).

At 29 February 2008, the amount due to Rosy Blue HK by TSLJ, a subsidiary of the Company, was HK$15,000.

During the year ended 29 February 2008, TSL(Export), a subsidiary of the Company, sold finished goods to Rosy Blue
HK amounting to HK$510,000, sold finished goods to Rosy Blue N.V. amounting to HK$278,000 and sold finished goods
to Rosy Blue Fine Inc. amounting to HK$4,000.

At 28 February 2009, the amount due to Rosy Blue Fine Inc. by TSL (Export), a subsidiary of the Company, was
HK$1,000 (2008: HK$1,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2009, EF sold raw materials to BTSL through Rosy Blue (Shanghai) Diamond
Company Limited (“Rosy Blue SH”), an authorised diamond trading company in the PRC, amounting to HK$26,898,000
(2008: HK$61,014,000).

Rosy Blue HK, Rosy Blue Fine Inc., Rosy Blue N.V. and Rosy Blue SH are subsidiaries of Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L.,
a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics. In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the transactions were
carried out on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business.

31 @E KA A TR 5 (&)

(c) B Z=2009F2 A28 H IEFEEIR - ANAR—FME A RHInB 2SR5 - MRosy Blue HKEE A &E0#H# 131,718,000t (20084 : 7
#285,591,0007T ) ) R £ K BUAK K HH & A EE 5,000 T IR M £ » 72009F2 5288 » #itnBiRliE & 5 #5/E [ Rosy Blue HKEYFX
TH & 75%70,062,0007T (20084F : 7#%109,273,0007T) °
£ 220092 A28 [ FEHRH - ANA R —REHIEB A R TSLORM ) MRosy Blue HKEE A A0 7E%150,0007C (20084 : BT L) KEM
TR BIRK
B Z2009F2 A28 H (L FE AR - ANA R —REHTE A R#InE (F4) - [MRosy Blue HKIE A A28 %6,411,0007T (20084 : AT T)
R R R G 7A2009F2 A 28H - #fitniE(F75 ) B Rosy Blue HKEIFUIE 481 368,000, (20084 : BT L) »
R2008F 25290 + AN aE M B A 5 # A E & (FRosy Blue HKA)FIE A7 #15,0007T °

#HZE2008F2 29 IFFEHRE - AAF—FHMEB A R#ImEE (L A) - MRosy Blue HKIE & &£0#%510,000 T A 2K fh  MIRosy Blue
N.V.H & & 25 278,000 T HI R 5 X [F]Rosy Blue Fine Inc. i & A& 254,000 TR 5 ©

B Z20094F2 A28 8 \FERERT - AL Al —REIHIE A 2158 (1 0) A Rosy Blue Fine Inc.&92KI8 75 #1,0007T (20084F : 75#1,0007T) °
RBHFERANEE2009F2A28A HFEFA—HPERIEAE SR RERR( L) BABRAR(TEBIR LG ) it REmE L &R
M BEE#26,898,0007T (20084 : E#61,014,0007T) °

Rosy Blue HK - Rosy Blue Fine Inc. * Rosy Blue N.V.f1EZ 5% _E /8 & Partner Logistics )& 5t &% 5 Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L..Z
MEBAR - NAREZEERA * RH1T A BEBKBRETIRIETEFEGRIET -



31 Connected and related party transactions (continued) 32 K B A 132 5 (48)
(d) The Group paid key management personnel compensation as follows:—

AEERFEERABMNHERT -

28.2.2009 29.2.2008

200942 A28H 200842 A29H

HK$’000 & Tt HK$’'000 ##T 7t
e
Short-term employee benefits EHEBEF 13,421 17,199
Post-employment benefits 1B 1EEF 42 48
Equity compensation benefits MR F ERT - 190
13,463 17,437

32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values

(a) Financial risk management
The Group is exposed to a variety of risks including foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest

rate risk arising in the normal course of the Group’s business activities.

The Group does not have any written risk management policies and guidelines. The directors monitor the financial
risk management of the Group and take such measures as considered necessary from time to time to minimise such

financial risks.

2 MBARERR QA ERE
() FIBERE T
AEERYEERAR  DERARFEEDZ —RBRTELZIEER  FERR RBESERKESTEFIEER -

AEEYET LA EERREEBR LIS - EFEEAKE KRR EE - A NHRARSUTEZER - RIEZFMBERE o



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate, and the Group’s net investments
in foreign subsidiaries. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars. The Group does
not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge against fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mitigates this risk by conducting the sales and purchases transactions in the same
currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, the United States dollars is reasonably stable under the Linked Exchange Rate System
with the Hong Kong dollars and accordingly, the Company does not have any significant foreign exchange risk.

32 WHEBRERE AR AT ()
(a) BRRER ()
(i) SMEmSE
SNERBERBTAZ AR EIERZ RS RERER S B MEDH AR -

AEBTEEH ZNERR  RRBEERB BRI N2 EEIIEZEERASERBEINGBAR2FHRE - S3ubERZ
ERIBAHET - AKREYERERBTEMITEMB TR  IMEEEREREIPETREAE - AREEBEAEBIN AR —
ERETEERZRELL R

EEZRA - ERNAETHBBEXGIET - ZTAEENRTE - Bit - AABARBAEANINERE



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(i) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle obligations within the normal terms
of transactions. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of the debtors’ financial condition and maintains an
account for impairment losses for doubtful trade and other accounts receivable based upon the expected collectibles
of all trade and other accounts receivable.

At the balance sheet date, there were no major concentrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is therefore represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset as
stated in the balance sheet.

Cash is held with financial institutions of good standing.

32 MR TR kAR EMET (&)
(a) IR EIR (&)
(i) =B
EERBRNARFAREIN —BRXIBNEEEHFMEE - AEEIZRBRAEE S MEMBUER BHAIKERE - HEBHBAZ
BBURRE L B E BT - RBLEMER R R E A FEUGR 2 RIRIR BRI EIE1S -

REER - FERBYEBEET -
At - RAZEERBRREERBRRABSMBEEZREE -

RE RN EARIFBE Z SREE -



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated
with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair
value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The Group monitors and maintains a level of
bank balances deemed adequate to finance the Group’s operations.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required
and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding requirements could
be met. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place for contingency purposes. As at 28 February 2009, the
Group’s total available banking facilities were HK$122,320,000 (2008: HK$142,000,000), of which HK$112,302,000
(2008: HK$134,821,000) were utilized at the balance sheet date.

32 R E IR R AR EEE(E)
(a) BRBREE(E)
=
MENE R TIIEEFEASE AENEN K T EBERERS R Rk - ABEeR kg R ARz QA BB
HEMBEEMmESE

EHEZRDECAREEEERFARRE - ARESERLERRARHBRNAKELEMT ZRITHEHKFE
AEBURARERENMEERDESRAR BEAZREFRMNERAEE L LEESUERNAMEIHEERENEEST

Koo B2 O - SRITRL A O A& 4G LMETES 2 F  M2009F2 A28 » AREE 2 42451 TR A58 A5 122,320,000 (20084F : B 1K
142,000,0007T) * EF7E#112,302,0007T (20084 : 5#134,821,0007T) AEEHEEHA -



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued) 8775\ & 3% & 2 7¢ (B 5t (40

(a) Financial risk management (continued) 84 7#/E &I (%)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) y:&1& /5% (&)

The Group Z£E

The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the

contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows:—

REER  ARERARFRMBEEEIHER - RENEM TR TMA/AT

=T

As at 28 February 2009

72009425281
No fixed
repayment
terms/
On demand Less than 1to2 2to5
E[EFEEH, 1 year year(s) years Total
BIREKER IESVEN 1FZE2F 2FE5F A%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT IT BT I BT T BT IT
]
Financial liabilities included in ST AFEFER BRI
trade and other payables HuipEN R 2
AR 285,377 98,071 - - 383,448
Bank overdrafts — secured RITES —BEA 22,468 = = = 22,468
Bank loans — secured RITE—HIKHF - 75,520 12,743 — 88,263
Other loan — secured Hih & — Ak - 14,907 7,009 — 21,916
Other loan — unsecured Hh &3k — IR - 315 — — 315
Obligations under finance B E TR EAE
leases - 173 98 210 481
307,845 188,986 19,850 210 516,891

No fixed

repayment

terms/

On demand
EETEEER
BIREKIEE
HK$’000

BT T

As at 29 February 2008

720082 H29H
Less than 1to2 2t05
1 year year(s) years Total
1FLAT 1FE25F PR ES AaF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT

Financial liabilities included in HAEEMNBERE
other payables and accruals Hih 2
BsasE 277,084 233,825 - - 510,909
Bank overdrafts — secured RITIES — B 25,804 - - - 25,804
Bank loans — secured RITER— HIEH 76,406 33,562 = 109,968
Other loan — secured HihEH— A - 15,930 22,306 - 38,236
Other loan — unsecured H it & 5k — fm3K - 1,888 315 — 2,203
Obligations under finance B SR
leases - 909 85 41 1,035
302,888 328,958 56,268 41 688,155



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued) 8175\ E T2 & A 7 E b T (45

st

(a) Financial risk management (continued) 847 E &1 (4)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) j:#& e /a5 (&)

The Company Z<2 7]

As at 28 February 2009

7200942 528 H
No fixed
repayment
terms/
On demand Less than 1to2 2to5
EE TR 1 year year(s) years Total
IRIREK(ER 1FELT 15 ZE24F 2F E5F =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T

Financial liabilities included in T ATERET R &
trade and other payables Hh R Z
BisaE 5,131 - - - 5,131
Other loan — unsecured Hfh B 2k — g E - 315 - - 315
Obligations under finance AR ERE
leases - 62 - - 62
5,131 377 - - 5,508

As at 29 February 2008

7200852 H29H
No fixed
repayment
terms/
On demand Less than 1to2 2t05
mEEEEE 1 year year(s) years Total
RIRESRIER 1FAT 1EE2F 2 E54F %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PEEEF T PE¥ET T FEEET T Vot e PE¥TIT
|
Financial liabilities included in SFAEEMNERR
trade and other payables HMENRZ
MEBE 5,346 - - - 5,346
Other loan — unsecured Hih Bk — g - 1,888 315 - 2,203
Obligations under finance RVE T EAIE
leases - 885 62 - 947
5,346 2,773 377 - 8,496



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(iv)Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from floating rate borrowings. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined assuming that change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 28 February 2009 and the retained profits as of 28 February 2009 would decrease/increase by HK$265,000
(2008: decrease/increase by HK$1,382,000). This is mainly attributes to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

32 P FEREIE R A BT (&)
(a) AR ER ()
(iv) i@é})ﬁ?‘?& DA EFIER
RE&RENERR TJ?E'Imiﬁﬂ?“Ebﬁ@lﬁﬁxlﬂz*IEE%EE&EDZEL@ * RAEMKRRERIIERTSMNEEEHERH T
A2 BEKEZER

AEFBZNERBREIEELBFHNNEER - AT ZHREIMHIBRMNXLEHRNEEAREMETE - YERARZBCEFEN
BTAMHEZMEER - ERATEERABRM2MAIRRBE - A TRAFIEMH TEAE2RE - NEEBHRMERZAER]
BEE B R AR

WRIRIEN, TEAE - MFiA Eﬁm%%ﬂ%hT“ AEBEHZE2009F2 H28H |FFE 2 ZF M E 2200992 A28 B 2 (R 88 & FI#
b 12NN 265,000 (20084 : JEA> 12 hNiEHE1,382,0007T) © It T EIR A E E gt HY B S B P S 2 FIREE o



32Financial risk management and estimation of fair values (continued)

(b) Estimation of fair values
The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and other
receivables, cash at bank, trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
finance lease liabilities is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of non-trade balances due from/to group and related companies has not been determined as the timing of
the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of the relationship.

32 W ARERE AR ERE (E)

(b) AAEZfEE
R—FRIPzHBEEN BB (BREEERRLEMBYGR - RITEX - BANEIREMENR) 28R BREAEENAERE °
REHERBEZ AR BRI ARRRSREZIRE - WIRARNHE TR ZRITHHHKRIEE -

MNEEEARRRSRERMEEAEETE  RUBETRK NN EENBELRZFESEBRZARE -

33Financial instruments by category ¥ T AS%A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follow:
SRR MBI AENEER 2BREBENT :
The Group &

Loans and
receivables

B & EMGR
HK$'000 # %+t

Financial assets BREE
As at 28 February 2009 7200952 H28H
Financial assets included in trade T ATEEUAR SR R MY 2 IS B E
and other receivables 149,829
Cash at bank and in hand RITREB NS 127,121
Total wmEt 276,950
]
Loans and
receivables
B & EGR

HK$’000 7% F 7t

Financial assets MREE
As at 29 February 2008 72008F2H29H
Financial assets included in trade T ATE YRR R B e 2 A RS B B

and other receivables 145,458
Cash at bank and in hand RITEBRRS 78,998
Total st 224,456



33Financial instruments by category (continued) 8717 T A58 (4)

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
DARE SHAC AR ABR

Z BB aE

HK$’000 %% T
I EEEEEEE——————————————————

Financial liabilities HBAE
As at 28 February 2009 7200952H28H
Financial liabilities included in trade FTAERMERREMEN R B EE

and other payables 383,448
Bank overdrafts-secured RITE —HIEA 22,468
Bank loans-secured RITER—HER 87,014
Other loan-secured HAME R —HEH 21,514
Other loan-unsecured Eofth B30 — SRR 311
Obligations under finance leases A E AR 481
Total st 515,236
As at 29 February 2008 720085F2H29H
Financial liabilities included in trade FTAERMERREMEN R M EE

and other payables 510,909
Bank overdrafts-secured RITEZ —HIEA 25,804
Bank loans-secured RITER—HER 106,117
Other loan-secured HAME R —HEH 36,066
Other loan-unsecured Eofth B30 — SRR 2,094
Obligations under finance leases A E AR 991
Total 1BsT 681,981



33Financial instruments by category (continued) & % &5 & (#)

The Company 2 7]

Loans and
receivables

B R FEUGR
HK$’000 i## Tt

Financial assets BKEE

As at 28 February 2009 7200952528 H

Due from subsidiaries FEACHTE A RIEUE 438,739
Deposits b 1
Cash at bank and in hand RITEBERS 44
Total @t 438,784

Loans and
receivables

B R FEUGR
HK$’000 i## Tt

Financial assets BKEE

As at 29 February 2008 72008525 29H

Due from subsidiaries FEACHTE A RIEUE 434,658
Deposits b 1
Cash at bank and in hand RITEBERS 22
Total @t 434,681



33Financial instruments by category (continued) B71 7T A5 %8 (4)
The Company (continued) 2AF (%)

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

LAZE SHAK AR A BR

Z PG aE

HK$’000 & Tt
]

Financial liabilities HEAE
As at 28 February 2009 7A2009%2H 28 H
Financial liabilities included in other payables HAEMNBERREMENRZTBEE 5,131
and accruals
Other loan-unsecured HAE 3 — KA 311
Obligations under finance leases BB MREARE 62
Total 4=t 5,504
As at 29 February 2008 7A2008%F2H29H
Financial liabilities included in other payables SFAERBRA R EMBEMNRZTEEE
and accruals 5,346
Other loan-unsecured HAE 3 — KA 2,093
Obligations under finance leases BB MREARE 903
Total Ha=t 8,342



34Recent accounting and financial reporting pronouncements S:rEME & &t & # S 2EAl

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new and revised standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the period ended 28 February 2009 and which have not been early adopted by the Group:—

REBARBRAKAATHEB S ASRMANEE2009F2 28 H ILFERERIERT « F BT 2 ER REE | —

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
AT B Bisk 2 & FAsA
Z BT EAR AR

HKAS 1 (Revised)
BRI E RIS R (1ERT)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

BRI EAERIE235% (15R])

HKAS 27 (Revised) Statements
BB IR EZERF 275 (IERT)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments

ARG ERE325E R E1RUERTA)
HKAS 39 Amendment
AR LA ZE395%

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 (Revised) Amendments

BB EENFE1RRE S ERFE275R (BT A)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

B8 IR E YR 25k (K 1ERT)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BB R EXERIE 35 (K1EE])

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BB R EERIE 7 (KIEE])

HKFRS 8

IR E R85

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and HKAS 39 Amendments

55 (BRMBREREEE®) RBEIRR
BB GTERIFE 395 (Ba]A)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

8 (BRM B RERELZE®) REFE135

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

BHE(BERMBREREEER) —2EE155

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

55 (BRRMBREREEZEE®) REF165

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

8 (BRMBHRERELZE®) REE17H

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

BHE(BERMBREREEES) —2EE185%

Presentation of Financial Statements

IR 2 2

Borrowing Costs

BB

Consolidated and Separate Financial

ire BB B TS R

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

ARheMIAERBRREENSE

Eligible Hedged ltems

SEREHIEE

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

RERMBAR - HEZEHIEREkE S A 82 KA

Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions
And Cancellations

AR BT — BB B 514 R st 88

Business Combinations

X%avt

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

WEEHRCRITAZERESE

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

NEITETA

Customer Loyalty Programmes

BF BB E

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

B E RS

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TBINETSIR B F R

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
DIRERCEETHR A

Transfers of Assets from Customers
REBRFZEEEZ

1 January 2009
2009F1H1H
1 January 2009

20091 A1H
1 July 2009

20097H1H
1 January 2009

200941418
1 July 2009

20097H1H
1 January 2009

2009F1H1H
1 January 2009

200941 A 1H
1 July 2009

20097 H1H
1 January 2009

200951 A1H
1 January 2009

200941 A 1H
1 July 2008

2008F7H1H

1 July 2008

2008F7H1H
1 January 2009

2009%F1H1H
1 October 2008

2008104 1H
1 July 2009

20097 A1H
1 July 2009

2009718



34 Recent accounting and financial reporting pronouncements (continued)
Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued “Improvements to HKFRSs” and “Improvements to HKFRSs 2009” in October
2008 and May 2009 respectively. The Improvements set out amendments to a number of HKFRSs and are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact of adopting the above new standards,
amendments/revisions/improvements to standards and interpretations in the period of initial application. So far, it has
concluded that the adoption of the following may result in new and amended disclosures and accounting treatment:

1. HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
2. HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
3. HK(IFRIC) —Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The other new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

AR ()

34 s BT R SRS R
BrIA ATl - BAESERIA® 5 BIR2008F10 8 K& 200945 A B[ BB SRS 2R 28k | k[ B A ISR EXER 2 E%2009 | © :ZIE2K
o f

BWZEEBMBMEERNELEE] - BERR BN 2009E1 H18 - 200947 A1 H %201051 A1 B AR B BER S £37% -

A B B PR AR A ERTETER - B BT R RBREBE R ZE - B AR ARMAT ZIHA GG BN RSB RER G
BRIRTIE

1. FEWHRELENFE 1R EER) MBHRE 2]
2. BRMBEREERFENR LD ER
3. AR (ERMBHRERBEES) —2EF13% 2P AW E

MmEMHF] REETREMHRELN T KA REH AN RE 2 W HHRRENEAEE

35Ultimate controlling party &4z
At 28 February 2009, the Directors consider the ultimate holding company to be Blink Technology Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate controlling party to be Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

2009F2F28H + EERAE ALK AR AN B R Z S MAKSLA Blink Technology Limited « A% IE Mk A T ARfEIE L4 -



Five Years Financial Summary n &gz

RESULTS %

Year ended 28th/29th February
HZ=2H28/29H L FE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT BT BT T

Turnover L8 4 1,959,396 1,917,467 1,509,851 1,324,132 1,275,996
-
Profit before taxation MR AR 159,536 157,409 98,934 42,433 78,418
Taxation THIE (35,022) (46,053) (24,955) (70,551) (35,223)
Profit/(Loss) for the year NEEZRF(EE) 124,514 111,356 73,979 (28,118) 43,195
-
Attributable to : FE(GBR D

Equity shareholders of the Company b N/NGT ) 104,800 99,240 55,562 (47,977) 35,813
Minority interests DR R RERS 19,714 12,116 18,417 19,859 7,382

Profit/(loss) for the year REFAF,(FE) 124,514 111,356 73,979 (28,118) 43,195



Five Years Financial Summary n&asgE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EXk&fE

As at 28th/29th February

2 H28/29H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T BT T BT T BT T
Investment properties and property, EMENDE

plant and equipment EE 134,625 138,375 130,663 117,691 105,684
Deferred tax assets IEIERIE A E 26,732 18,883 25,096 20,834 17,684

Investments in securities and BHEEERIERBEE
non current assets 500 500 603 603 600
Current assets RENEE 1,050,499 1,101,226 764,532 712,673 674,266
Current liabilities MENAE (582,822) (738,014) (525,345) (484,605) (445,712)
629,534 520,970 395,549 367,196 352,522
Obiligation under finance lease RATREAE (308) (126) (991) (614) (876)
Bank and other loans HRITREAME K (19,602) (54,146) (76,359) (110,867) (74,433)
Employee benefit obligations EEBEANESE (22,323) (17,671) (10,836) (8,759) (10,190)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAE (6,885) (777) (55) (46) (15)
NET ASSETS EEFE 580,416 448,250 307,308 246,910 267,008

Capital and reserves BEAR B
Share capital (&N 52,203 51,766 51,766 51,766 51,766
Reserves i 459,847 349,865 223,863 155,186 197,594
Total equity attributable to PG g T

equity shareholders of the company 512,050 401,631 275,629 206,952 249,360
Minority interests DI RS 68,366 46,619 31,679 39,958 17,648
TOTAL EQUITY R 580,416 448,250 307,308 246,910 267,008



Summary of Properties v =

Percentage

Gross floor interest in
Location area property
oG BEEE  MEESLE

1 Private Car Parking Space Nos.

43-50, and 73 on Basement
and Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11
and 14, 1st Floor, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue
Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong N/A 100%
BB TLEALM RS E305 FL2 T i K E /s
43-50 X 73R EA K&

1-4, 6, 11 %1455 B ESQE AL

2 Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor; Units
A1-A2, B and C, 1st Floor; Unit E-H, 2nd
Floor; Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor;
Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong 91,455 100%
BB N RRAL R30S Bl TRy K EHE T

A1-A7, BEEfy - A& EDD - SRS ¢

11EA1-A25 1 - BRCEfy - 2#BE-HE

EA-KE KT A

3 Units A & B, 1st Floor, Shui Ki Industrial
Building, No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong 10,716 100%
BRAEBEATEMIE18 R InE L ERNE1IEAZBENL

4 Unit A1 on Level 1 and 2, Block 2, Heng Chang
Garden, Beijing, PRC 1,654 100%
FR B R A & TEEI 2R 1-212 A1 B AL

Category of
tenure
FHIN DA

Usage
R



Summary of Properties v =

Location

o

5 Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome
Garden, Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC
REE R EAS R B 2K A S IEEFE23E1 =

L:

M:

Long term lease
Medium term lease
Carpark

Industrial unit

Residential

: Not applicable

RHRY

R HEIR#)

JREAL

TEREBM

Gross floor
area
EREME

1,735

Percentage
interest in
property

bYIE i Tl e

100%

Category of
tenure
FHNH

Usage
&
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